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Company Type

Public Limited Company

Corporate Office

Kathmandu, Nepal

Regional Office

Pokhara-8, Kaski

Company Registration Date 2076-06-16
Company Registration no . 226600/076/077
PAN 609643602

Management of Private Equity Fund
Management of Venture capital fund
ObEcoues Management of Hedge fund
Management of Fund

Investment in the sector of Tourism Infrastructure,
Industrial Development etc.

Area of operation Nationwide

Capital Structure

Particular Strategic Structure

Authorized Share Capital 2,21,00,00,000/-

Issue of Capital 1,72,00,00,000/-

Website: www.tifl.com.np
Email Address: info@tifl.com.np
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Financial Liabilities
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I swtAe whug fafies

TAT 7. QEE00/09% /099, UTERT AERRUTIAST a8T #. 0T HIah!

T qaeh GaT JahTeTd Al R0/ 03/ 0%

T g2 gaT gt ffd RozR/03/95
Sl IO FUTEAT FEAHTERT,
T HFIIRT FIT 043/ 03/ 3% Tl ST HeTeToh HIHIqeRT SIashohl MU STFHR 9 HFI-1ehT 3. .
R0¢0/ 08 T U dTfeh HTLTRUT BT <geh! THid, TH T AT Fefeiad ress 3T sehet TR

FuTey TiehT AT SR TUEhT EaT gl SRIEHT TRTMTaIe%ehT STHERTIGhT AT 2T T TehTferd TTRUE & |

q. awr g frfa, e T em

ffer: R0¢3 T FER ¢ T AR |

A TSR ¢:30 a9 |

T TRE HEFRRATerehl-<, feurd Seet i, erdmgs fee . ¢ o, JRe, Shieh |

. TARH! [NIET:

. HTY J&dd:

2. HFIHIERT STRTESYTIE TR 3T, d. R0<0 /042 T aTieh TTqeIG-HTT SeThe T IR T SFrram T |

R. 3. T, R0co/0c? T AW R Hideie Hiedeh! STHeTd, AT Al TedTe, e Ve faewor
T TrTieIa STgfeet diedeh fatae faeRuTee UL Seithet TR ITHG T SFewemT |

3. SR 3. T R0£2/0¢R 2T ATNT RETIRIEEhRehT THYfh TIT TAsTenT UTiCTHeR dler Srervem |

g, fovw yemE:

2. HFIHIERT TSTEE FHRITCH Teehl ST GREGH TRT ShFHTehRT Jeed=iehT 3T R T THammactien! fem 2 &
SEEIT HE T T |

3. FHFIehT ITIT AT qAT IRHATSH T HPIIehT TSI=IT=IehT ST ¥ hT SFeEAT GNEH T+ SR |

3., SHFTHTERT ST HGEAT NG TR SFHTehT JSredsTehT QT & ShT SHaeT SSME T ST |

¥, STRY YSTehT R0.43 Hqerd g T3 T TRFTeh drdsTeh R (IPO) i i fremess ferrrT
TliepfcTenT CATHT URT T TFT-EIHT T 1 TFT-l SrguT hIigeehl TITRT HelTeteh HTHIGeTs STEdaRy fa
GrsiHT |

«. SRR FRITTaT ShT oI R 3T STaTEIT HRME 7T SFarearT |

%. HodTeeh g Talqae ~Jaw SRR ST UREH TR Po-TehT TRIaTaeiishl T ¢ ahT SareelT Sie
T ST |

. GodTereheh! TR, sideh 9T T 1= e feior T arsmemr |

¢. Tk ToaTeish AiaTquT STaweh FoaTeish Tag(d 7T+ SFT-oT |

R, T Afdeh! Sgahehl U STIHTG T T2 |

20 T ST |

22 SIS ToaeT 7 FrvaermT |

. fafeern) REIREY Eﬁ'ﬁl'a?f m

HAT qed
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AR ORI Addetll forRkIa a2nm Hal SeabRis:

q. YA ARG HETHIAEEATE YR AAHT el SETHT TAER RCH F | Ao Ay T
UFTHT T8 Ta ATERYT WHT TR AT TS TR & |

R. Digital Media ATHT UG HTHRT FPIATH Tiaa A0 TRTH & | THHAT ST g1 QARG
gfaaeT et T IR=[TT AT TEY FAFHA TAHT TN TENS | aiNe IiaaeH, see an
ISSHT AT IUqH g e Joad WReg |

3. TS QTARUEHTR ATAHT TP AT [T e 0d Afcheeas qaasdsl ST Ta9 a9
fg | IieEaTE AAeR g 8, 9, e X GETE S R IR e |

¥, g g fam wwren sutefaet anfr s gfeer faem 530 soRf awmer S\ gy
AAIEH Gooll @G |

Y. AT AT T 3og% NERERISIEed 99 g T 9o 33 g Wt afesr W Sufera swiE e
™ ER T g |

%, TIEREAI ATHRAT TR TR T G, STaRurET ga feear R O e semfea = diai
e TRE TEH AEEFIS | AT FPT IHHT FESRN TS e g & | i
AR T 87 dAeae 88 a1 {1 &l IqEA 69 FFA atgsan aax e
JrTseaT S g S |

9, W AMFIEAT qeF VARG FPHIF ARRATE JIR o TR TRy T arg 87 )
FERA A FRIAT 9,00,000/- foFaT TR qER § WAy T qamaT |

5. yiatafy fraee T TR TR FTH FRATET GE TTHT S AT JHTHT IR 7S 8T
T TG TRAT TN TG fauar giaffr o (@t & H @@ 992 g | FFe 3]
T FFA! Qe TREA AR JAAE-99 A 7 gg |

R. B YASA FLAT AT FFAT AREAIPT FHHT AT JASA FLAT AT RIS TR ey gfeafoaferr
PIRATAH fqqqS I 7 o7 qFsH, IO RER® I FEAE AHER 9T
TORIIE | TH T FRIAT FEAHH & TIART I TUET A AGADH §IG |

90. TR HETTHIAEEATS PTG dal T&T WC SARAR! faqq gawer fafqe geamasr 3
fer smfe FwaeirmT fofea TomT Tsaifad TEMg | T TKAEaEedE S9nd T IR g TEae!
TIHT TR AHRIYAF T T TERTEH TAT THATE ATHR RIS |

99. WIS ST SARH TR AL ATHEAT ARIT & ST |
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FHAT A, 0%3 P TRT N W7 qWEaq

R FRA (Ffafa 99)

£ ISP Al
oW AT we fafaee
FAP!, PISHTST, AT

foer : gfafqfar faee e s |
e,
TUUE TETTEHT  cooeeereeeereeeeeeereereeeeeneeeenne TR MAT/F.AEST 5
.................. T H/BTH oo oo rerererenenns & AW P AUREARR SfqTaer fufy fow,
05%/03/35 A NHER gX Ti= A AraRuEsTa T 7/el @I IUd 7E e adr Huigar aesel
T TEH ATHA I GHIAT AN /TTHT ADBATE T FAT T HAGTAAHAT THBT AL, oo
........ TR e b TTLAT/AALART Mo T ... TS AR AT
s T Tea g |\
q. RGP AH
R ST
3. JURGAT THOIT /S, 3. A7, S A=K
¥. oo i) ger
Y. YR €

TR A AT A T &7 W1 ¥ HUT IR A FEAW g SAT FAhl, HISATS, AU fAq qE
FRATIAT I TRAF TG |

£ TR THEAT e fafraesr fafa R053/03/35 AT gX wi= i ATERwT FHTHT ST g9 ST TRGE
e E Il

T GHIHEAT TA 4 AT JI4 IF A 3997 fE A< g7 SIRg & |
T AT HEAT T T e ST |

wiatta e e st

T JAREAT THOT /. o1 18, 8. =W
ST THEd -

JIRET A, ¢ qH ¢

TEAER THAT ¢ ST

= 9 . ¢ R &t :

fufa: taes fufer :

FHAT afee

R05R/0%/%
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TR Iy fawes

9. MR @fafaf) Fafe 1ot TRaers 7 T oHg T e I ERE aweare
yiaffr & vaem T@T T eNs |

R MR wRA @faffr o) T qF g AR/ FROAT ¥5 GO Y [AEE AT
TAT T FF TG, |

3. TREIS UHSTET a7 AfherE AT AR fsier T a1 o Y fepfarane gaard
fegrar TRl TR T

¥, Y T T a1 (R T gt Mg I8 T APt qHR T A AT QY fatad =T
[T & 9T FIRTAT ¥5 U e LS Fraierd gt T4 I W |

Y. W @fafif) @ 9o IRuer aferanl 1 IR fafgd R 99 9§ ST
FRIAT ¥o HUET S WTEE FA@TH Iy AT R v @fafafn &
HATM T I8N S | IR T ARG AT 1 FRATEET Y T A THEAT
@4 U HTAT NEREHEe Nl @fatnars e sfafifr o s ga )

% FY YT, FHA TR BT AT AT NAREEIE TR TR Fhafirs SaRerie
s waem ™ qWe

S, AT FEAREAIH! THATE VA T FhATSHT YI&Tehepl TYAT A AT ATH  AfeS
JHHT AN o, Faam™ 9 a1 giat de qreeg |
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o AT wue fafmeewr uiEt aiffw
TERY qIHE gHE Afataey, fafre sfafesy,
AT AETTHTEEE, FHAIHT GoaTad Td RPN
TEE, U ARGl HETTATEE®, AaeIT 99E,
FHAW TSk T 19K faee aia e sfvwares
AT TG |

e AT wUe fafieedr awae sEade
e a9 T JrERT IR qUEEE oS
TF @R T e AQ T T A 9=

o<y !
AN AfewTr T& qoorl

H Jgles awe St uNar s @it ¥ TEe
fferq g | e fuige R a9 TR
FENTAT A AT AR THT PIAGH T AR
EYE WCH G | TEA Tl PP (AR
g T AHAAH! TSN HEAYU HATIATE Wbl
T A T T qHAT TRHT T TS
AIEEEHT AT W TF HedYU WEHH qoq
T WH G |

FAIH Se¥T TheT AF, AT qhEAET,
FrEAEF FHRT &, ThET AR T I SARTAAER
- AAEEHT UM SIHT T T T
ATpF T fasiar 19 & | TS fAFe® qhed
(Tourism), AT (Ropeways), F (Agriculture),

&Mt (Energy), STERHT W= (Infrastructure),

aferex ¥AT (Hospitalities), =X, AT T Gfaf
(Technology), WA (Recreation), SR
SART (Productive Industries) T&eT S |

THN T TAEEeds  HEEaT A
A JEAS T 6V, A7k |MISA FU€ TF
THRAT TN, &9 B ¥ B JI9A
T Tffafes AThd faid STHuEEd! axiiad
STRT T IR o T & | @ e
FAEE SureEdl Ratrer, fafamar
RAeT A AIET AqEEE THe AT WIH
&, % ST SRR erfieTE ST ik
I W T ieeiier gepreeapt ®qT & fadfiy @
e F™ &g )

FHAB T T e §7, Arartad HaaT,
FrEAEF FHART &7, [T TATER T 7 SAEAHAD
JH-TWIT AAEEHT  UAIAe  STAHT QAT
TR AFYEF qed T T & | T g
TAHEEATS AT TP AR Iase T
T ®vE ¥ Y FEWUA T Aqraes Ahd
fier SYFvEES afad STERT A U
T TRE & | A P e SNEEH
frafren, fafaaar qor wgeee e srae saeREs
TS A gl [T, SRS T e
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T GRGRIAT AT W= ¥ il e
T ¥ fw = e T )

T AF qUAT T BT A I
FAFET AT SEE T e S|
THA T T qEiad Fal [AEREeH T0E
TRAFES qHAAEs qfea W 9 g T
FAFRATAEE A FHAW TH qAT THT TRH
o, TTHT TAPRATAEEHT AT qiqd e qig
T FRUHAN HT GOl T qRENAES Ja8q T4
YA T IR FPAA | AT ATAT TeAbaH
femr et Tate 9 Jaifwaes, fara T e
Frar foam qam g | FEe afaterae aRae
RifveTeRT yafda afEiemT 9% (HUER) g | AR
AR AMTAT TS T THATH T ISIHH T9R TG
STHEEH ATAEEAE GHIT W HHAT Araar
wRHg T e T erwr fafeer ST
e AThd He@qU HYe® Ui IR=maw T
R

BT Py SHa=Ta el ATh a S5 FHAIET A5
FA! GHEAT AL T4 I YOG FHAETP! DA
FAGHET T AMYF FOEAAAT SUH T& SHRTH
HIIUE T ATY Al HAT THTH Fwe a8/q
TR FE AT LN T Fb Gfv=rar T
HEeaqU ST @ B | FFAT TG0 @A
TRIR FEET JATET FHEedrs @gs Argfed
TRISA FAH LA TAHA T4 TR S |

R et A9 3T wrEe Sfaaer ¥ =R Ffres
HIEH THELTA FfAhd T&F g | 8 3y
A TARTHT TS FHP Se¥d @i, Iq
ATETH WHITE® qF T IqH [@aRES THd
TR T AEAF oM § | fagaaardr snfdes
FifraaaEse ST 9 FEAES @ Aide
TEA B T T FA qhps T FEE A8
freia aTa IRXT ATEIHT FIHAT NeATTed T M)
T HUEH TANT T TAYAT TH ATA SRRl

IREHT TG |
T THRET AP T T TS SqEEE

FFAIETHT THT T ARATHEE < fqaqor sifaw
ALY &THT FAa@arars s 14 16 |
TG FHAI (RIS TTETP A&T GT T
I TE FAA T S ITH o1
Tq I FRAGH TP AR TEAF FPIAET
YqET Td GqEA T AT g SEadT qee
T TWH |

=T

0% FIAHT IWMHN THEA &Fas qamar & T
IARE qaF SUNT AFHN FagT T FqET T
R i STFRUET T FEE, AAGIAT I
AT SN T a9 ATha el qarey
AR FOAT T SexqA YT RTH FHAT
B | AR ATF YT AT, A ATHHES
T T, T T gaaes afgfe ™ Fee
TEAT @S | A = i W@ TRaRiar
=T ™ T aediEed Bd EWEw W
FHAT TN @l G |

e

WM a9 aREas T W e e
AW Yadd 9, J[EIGE @, Aad
fg, TREUEEAE P TSN, T EHAD
ARAYITATS FTETET & T T THAEH e
IAHEE HTHA MR T8ees MRE |

iRereq

TS AT, frdiest ARteRi T 7 qaEees
YR TR qheT G fqhaarg i s,
W fAFEeE gaET T T A, ARER
T QUEUEE # ANYF Siael ani Afed a«r
ARG WA T oI T |

e

* T FEHT AT NERIfTAr 00% & farR
™
® 900% MEF ARNE T THAA T
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° giw ERTT TIFL ATS ATl IS FPeenr
YA WA T

SRBEY

%. YENE T FI GA@F T

€. A7) FIed ®IE G T

. B B FEIET T

o, Y, Ae@R, qded, qaHR, $aqeR, AT 3,
TARNH AT, SNEe T Anfereaan
AT, Raer IR TRASAES A1 I q9n
AT T

S Te RfTE T A oo R w1 it
EUIGIEEE RN

9. YAl TF AR AT Aqreiged (o gatar
STHT T RS

V. SEYUET FAEAT 1 GeF UG 994G
FIAEE TAET T8 q¥qgT T

. faftfeeRu S FaEae e IRt JEEE
FEH IET TR FAET RS

q. IgeAra fafadiwzor (Diversification across

sectors)

® AT =T (Infrastructure), I
(Technology), T faw TR (Real Estate)
T THE §TESHT T

® T HAAT &Y JFEIAT T X Staw
AH |

R. et ¥ fedren qfgwr R (Focus on
sustainable projects)
® qITER, WIS T MEA (ESG) ATHA
qRASATEEAT T |
°* AqP! AP AP e TG AP
ST AT AT |

3. SIfEH FESIT (Strong risk management)

® & faAr (Due diligence) ¥ TR
FHET gRT AT T |

e YRREeT 20T0/0Ka \[[[/@
® FWR, ASHIaF T A Sfewesan
AT oA |
X, @"iilq T aiyaa; W (Stl'ategic

partnerships)

® ATl FFIEE, ALH &I, T R
TNHAET e |

* giaf, gofr, ¥ ferdiomraret sRM-ge™ T
AT |

Y. ST-ArENRa MU (Data—driven decision—
making)

* fqig Wi (Financial modeling) T 82T
Tt (Data Analytics) B FINT TR
CIESUCERIcE I

® TR T, TS T T AT
FTEAIEES! ATS RS0 |

TIFL & SREHIT ATt AT AT AAAT SIGH

g:
forar T afg - A IS sefae e
faepran e dfa T aRE )

siifegw T - fafadieor T sEmaTerT qRida
A T qHRG |

JIREE - W T T IEF e FAe T
IRG |

el FTETRYT AT Y (ATT 9T FrAH AR
SIS ¢

Tl FATEAT TAW T AT AR, TR 1S
1% e (e . fq. @d fafee s
FIRY TR FEdR T GhAT TRE & |
TR TR A T ™= 7. fa, fag
THT AT A1 T ., IRBST T Te U
. f, I @ devEd ol W W, W<€ 92
T IR e, fea=w araw surddae w.
fr., ToiTE S TATHT FFEEHT AT S
IREPIT AT g A QMG FAS SUATH! AT
fafeT @ M @ | 79 THRE MfafafEe AR
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FHAIH AT R T, THE INRAAEE G
T AT SUEfEEe e T YRRATHT A WS
FEAT TG |

frfa qor FARHESH BRI

T AERT ANEed MG FuigeE T

A gt AT ATAREE TF TATEY (HAATTER
FEEE WA G |

T QR R W Aifa st
R Qe ETH g afqw TReE g | vl
YFETHT T AT T o1 AR A, fevit e
fapeer @t weaars fafatresor @ @fen
FEAEE AT A 99 RSP, R TE ATAF
TET FAH TAMR FHFEANE! SMET TIALTH,
fafoar Twmaiar Afq @rp e, afoar e
T I9H ATERTHT AR S FEAHH AREH,
FAAIH! (ST TATAITR! AT S B TRTH
T 9Eqe e anlt A aarr ke

AAHNES AT TEg |
YRI® qEwqE HserE PO
AAYIAF TAREE :

FHAA [ T WHAITAE T80 TSI gREPIorapt
[T TF FUMH STA! T FGHP! EIAT [PO ST
T A U Aeadrs Jraanad 6 |

IPO TNV T I g4

TIFL IPO & PRIt ART A7 I = a1
FFAIB T THE ATSALNT ST T FqAX [
T T T AUR GfATR &or &Y | et enl _w
PRENEE TAES AN FART THES TS & |

T FIHA B A i PGyt A
FE A TAvadd, AMUE qig, T SUREEA
TRIEEr qET Rl TR THEES Qs
T ghewiurars g qie T 9w @ )

ATERNA FFATHT UAAS AGAEEATS M 4
IARFH! EYAT FH T4, | GHAT Io1 A6 T4
THRET FEIET [ T

o T TOREEHAT FA T FEESHT

A R T\

o I Yl T TATETRAT AT TR FFIAR
¢St afteree aAareTs St TS TET
T

¢ Tad, AR, ¥ SEEANE fF TN
HAETHT ETHT YEAF T AR S Ieeas
YFET TS |qET A |

o T ITFRET AT T b A9aT i
T AT T& T FEe Ta89T T |

o fafiTieeor T Y TAYET R B T |

® YW HATAYT FHAT Fa8q TP AWM
A T

qHERted gSir ferewer
® FHA FET T & 3,39,00,00,000/-
HATH T T A EHEI-HAS BNl A |

o FHHIP WA Yo & §,9,00,00,000/-
FATH T TF F TeOR IS |t a7 |

* WA Yage NAX 9,9%,5%,0%0/-fFar @A
g\

® FUHR NIAX W,00,000/- f&FAT A § |

* FAH WA T & 9 I R FAeAR
ATRFR TIX T W FAE TG g A<
T QA ¥ FASH 0.43 Fiqercer § q00
Afepa T 30,9990 foFar TR IRi
st (mefasl) e e &)

e, QataR ¥ ST eI arl S
TR T SHREEH A A A HH
a1 Fmfe @ | g | FAH A i i A,
SrePTT Ao o e T fewme TR
&, T W IPO T AT FHN TP = THA
Gl

TS AT PF T8 F, A ATSATET Gopr IR
A A, a9 fava, qeanT, T Wi & qnt
AT gRedure ST fER ot Wy | S
gl e e, el areRiar s T, =R
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PRAGHTET T, T ETHT I FRAPRATAEEH! [EaelTs
grataerar fa arem War g |

AT HrATET
U

faftdigor Fw i yade IR P T
HN FE T, TGP AR ST e, qeeR
MY, a1 F+ faiT qEeE Ahd M=) aig
T YRS W T e UF SARAHEE ST
T T P TAR TG |

T B9 T aTe® ¢

ARl T AT WHAF FHIIH B, TFA
T giegiae  faaae wivget g ) st gfew
TR TYAT AL TeF ANTHT Sg@l
g | W Afa Tha dedarg watiear &
YR T & | 99 O ar9d Tiaherer
I GHTET SEs |

e

Io9 THeT YHIEATT AUH SAe® a1 TINEEHT
T AT T

A

A73, eferefodl, @ o g, gE W, €-
Y, 2T, TAUHS & (SMES), @TE q9es, Theq
AR, A=d R, B T AARSST &l o=t
GUSETHT T T |

THGP |EET .

feh, argaTiaes e, ¥ S ot qfg yada
& e |

ARTAT ST

FOAN N fAew, STEl aREEE ¥
Srefeprene @ ghfrera o fafer 7o ifaes
T ASFAEEH FEATEIT T TR @ G |

Q. @ DR e TR sifew
HERUIET AT IETH ATAE® ST
TS AT ReTae (Diversification) IFR=a

afas ufddeer 0TO/0TA \‘g{é)

T

o IO FWETT WUH SAeEH UfedA T
freqa SR e ws e ™

o qitsHd TGN AT TGS qTHAT T
FIH AT HISHEE Giovy

o fqasyel fvia giviea o Sfea airaes
(Due Diligence) R ™

R vfafr-@fa @ gl v wfafer
ARG ATAEEAHA (G Ifawe gHr=a
T

o FRIEANIH WHRATEE AT A9 &F
THAR T TRACEEHT FgH T

o yiatrmr afga FErieEdT  SrdHEE
qrvperr e ™

o I[N T TAYAATHT T FEIES
T Tifatae awar R ™

3 folt wde wagw W ik AR
AATERUAAT T ATATE e T |

o @A friwmwr  FRa  w@ER
FISAEEHT T I |

o WMIA THIEET ek Savedlr wded
ATEE [qHT T

o Siftqe fafaaardr SRevrens yrafwrar fa
IRASAEEAT T g |

¥, GEET QAT GEOdu TR qRERtar T
FATRIfEA®l ITHAH WIUEVE HEAN A&
TR faraaeaar FereT |

o FUNE WEA F&HAT Afq  qm
FATEAATEEAT  qATRA  qHIET <
FATATF T

o TP FRAWTA AT AT ar=Ror Y=
T WHIES AR T

o |IEAN T WFRA@EEUT T HAQ
gl freprer T

Y. frda wmafrar ya@w T T8 FewiTaree
ffr snomemmRa U aiMeE  faera

CGOp 2 GOVS | gRaTdT Soditedioe Us faifdics IRl -
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AR A8 |

o AT TqAM WMIA HIAEEEHT AT
HIAEE e T

o T wERAT WEgw W gEEtEd
FHEEAT qEbd T

o JEENIF THIGHT AT FEAT AT
IRl R ™

% AMa qoEd e T qEEren faee T
I TAYIRS! ATHN, (AT T FqERem
AT T q&7 T e 1 |

e ESSOP T ESRP FISFT $METIT T4

o FHAN Qv Afrafger wiftr wfra afew
T 4 FEHHEE AT T

o  FH FRTETH! ATATCHT [REHR TAT NAEA
Ut faere T

o IPRCHP, JHEIT T IRUMEHN F=WT
IATARHT TaGT T

o, fefieer TUWRUE NFarE e T,
TRRaTEEATS IR SATSe YAT THEIRar

T YESF AT R TH |

o fefied @R T YUMElle®wT T I
AIRF FATAEAE GHH TS

o fefitew wrles THMIE®E TR TF TR
e R ™

o yiafRa YRRAN @EEW a9 A
TAAT ANAfG T STHEE Gron

SR AT O
fafadiraor (Diversification)

o faf= Tl YREE AT A |
o fa= sinifee dmeewr dfaw sifEw
TS |

Wﬁ-aﬂmﬁﬁ' frrota (Research—

Driven Decisions) :

o TUR JAGW, fadg HiefMe ¥ WM
AIFHTRGRT AT T TEG |

o fafaeiaur

TEEas faf= d9e® T qwiaer Teres
fafadireRor g | TN Y THA TOR AT SARTH
SfEHAT FHI 6 |

=R ST
NERTNH Ta¥H ¥ SRS Jaeers fFata

T qWET T, qF A fgHEETE
IEHT T FHET T G |

efvte T e

o STFEE T SfEH AU qikees
TART TRT TARB! ATEIAT T AIATRI TEATETSE
WHT T AT T MR FF M6 | TRAT g
IAREGE T FUAA SifgHeware g=1 faae
IIEEE qIT STEH 0 T Jfafes T 16E |

TIFL & IO ST TPl TRESAT-STEd
e, WEAT ¥ SMEs % W) e«
T PPP (Public—Private Partnership) FISeHT
FENITaT TS X fafia #dike 9w T S9gw
FHIALYSIRG W R gwafaa 7ee 9
Frerrag e & 2 |

CADEIN]
T M T EART FFeEH T9a ¢

FEET qedF I Jear FH-eEd T98 X
AESE STHT FAIEHA HFIATHT ST T ST
ATHNT T G |

TR AT :

e HANT W@H TAEE, AU T9REE, I
R Sv9-q9ig See A T e TR
fagermor T G\

GIIIIF" HY]US

TS Ffawsd (ROI) omem, ey o, <
¥y fefeia abraes afeq T T A9eve
AT TG |

- Sl CR5T0T SoaNCdioe WhUS fAfcs | COOp 2 GOVS



AR o

T WA AT A
ST T |

e frior

EEATS AR T T qded AT
e ¥
fereprar 7T B |

W

R ST (EVENT) Yae & semelt 8 goit
ATHT FASA & | THHT AN T |

T BEE ¢

MIETd AT qENT (e, LY
SN ﬁﬁqﬁmaﬁw' N @R
T FwT i fafre

PITEE AT T G |

TRANA T TR FAHHES

SRR R ¢ A aeReAT AT A SR
T%'E';T Elisl%%-‘\?'llé ﬂlaliﬂa WT’ Wf;‘- 3
T ST TR ST T T 7 7 |
Tt e e e vt
T Qaes o T faieeans fawr
NG T T & | FAT A9, A,
N MBI v SE——
o8, AR T Aeafey dawR), RS wires
(miam T Pl W @ w,
T WIHEy FEAN TN fefaHer Jaee
FHAA T RS | S qe ATSreaTare
EIRE E AT oo WY TATSAAT i

g |

TRAWE FEAHA © qed | FoAeq T @
WEATEEAE AT Efd (Rapid Growth) ™ Hed
TG | e Haxw T fadiew weme | O
(Seed/Series Funding) # qq&T (W gheadr
fafrmaen s didiersy, @M T M--we
AT q9r 1 € (Investor Pitch) # HAWR

aIffcs Ufddcal 20TO/0Ta \‘%[/6)

I T JqEE WH TS | FEAH a8

WIEAIATE G AT T T T AT ToNRAT T
T e g |

Rt qeeEE : qataRorEdy e Sas
T, el qererd serEr W, T gatERd g e
FrHHES I T8 |

SRt TRl e At e, )
T FER ATHT IAreHat WWW;
-~ e feerr T B |

M FTdes -

° Wﬁ T,'Ta-‘iﬁﬁ(lssues
of Capital) I TH TS TR T@E T G |
Y QX N 7 FieR TR T W WS
TETE g ST 043 YW arEqeEr @wi
TERAT SIS FETSE |

ST TR : PR TR PR &
(Time Value) foer=t &

(T JAA ATSIEN T FHAP W'; ;'w'*“l
g\

far qavawa hﬂﬁﬁ : g fodr IR Y
frafe T TR omavEE ERENAT T
BRIER T TR W G |

yemfTEdter FaRe : wEE R
N TP R wf W? PP
T g T A O

Prafew TR s a"""‘@mﬁfmmﬁw;

@ 99 (Prospectus) TR 9 ¥ fat 97 ML
e e : i e T
fora=or o7 AR TP AR qepe ° fyaror o
TR T faw wffa e TR | e e
T gmIfaeal FEEe, 9 feew e
AT A9 W R, foEee q que
T @9 aRaEr ‘P 97 TR i)
el frspramer AR sfo=nive &9 fadt o

QAP 2 GOVs | g1 Sodedioc tUs feffeics KK -



afiiee gfddeal 20T0/0TA \‘g/@)

HEAT AT T FEAFA qT TR G |

TFRATEE I (A THAIUHT AT e
TR FAIAl AT GIREHT ST, &THT BT Wi
T TR ATATHT ATHHEREEATS AT qHT
TRIEHTE! | T ATEIET ATHA, TS FABRATAS
FHAIP Iet@A Y qig faprae qeaae fewr a=
HrebT ITeREA |

® T THIGACER AT, [PO F THI TUTH
YFE T wlasger T AEEqu SAUST Srebebt
AEAEE HTH FHNH THAATAT AIShaTr
T HAGLET A8 T TR |

® THT FHANEE T ATHIRETH! AN, TqA I
TRASAEE T AMTHPRESAT AAe® P AR
A TAT T&T Y48 Frde® T e Haas
FEATS A9 TG |

o FHIA AT ™ [REESH N, 1PO A
grlierE Asmmr faster I, qatar frer T
T WM AIqAArE AT IS TedeEdrs
AT T i fawg |

few Ay (@@ A @) : Aealey, A9,
T IUNTHT HSATEE AR GRATTEA AT ATAEE
Y= T {eAiHT T G |

gy fefrmima (@i =it : fair faweiwor, aoi”
FRIEAT, T T8 areiebl A qied aataa
FAEEHT T EGHT S T G |

NERIFAA TarEe . T TRCHT eSS
FEANT  qEieN, weEMer  Ma@w W, ¥
AEATIFATIAR FHES T T QEBIAAT R
AT JHT TG |

iy Aifqes : TR Py, smefret (1PO), &
e ©@ st srear it i deres
TR FEAFEAT ™S |

gl e

ST A AT (Total Capital Employed) : <.
3,¥¥,00,00000/- (AW T FF A =AM
FS TUAT A

@l (Equity)

YaE® NAEAEE (QERT T PR GqH SR)
R, ¥9%

yRTF Frawies fseEe (3mafrsh) 20.43%

T QYA ATI : (RR.405 : 90,¥]R)
F faA9 (Debt Financing)
U ¥ TEEE, e YUEE, TF WS

AP GIqes (Internal Sources)
o T I : fawr = (@fite =% aw whee)
o FHfa/qoiaee® [l a1 Niwe qF T

FHUAHT © faraE g A ARERE ®IHT
TIFL ¥ SMFaeedrs [yar, fagsar T 5=
FEAT U FAESHT UGS ARG J&W
% AT TG | AKAGF BT @E] TIFL B
39 giawe & gfqagare e aratae 4 <
e iy Tam T W= B3 giafvea g ) 9
foepfaa €% 9 e STl IRedTR! JIRT

eI 9 IEat X TIFL 39es 998 <
FRGT ALT T AHINIEE Tag7 TG |

T SR R AR
P AT o faftvee (TIFL) & wEew
AT TGEI AATREE AT AAIERT fafia
HIH Faerr gfatatae g | TreNe 3hEd 3
Yo FAMEH FAHAT ETHT WAIGE AT @,
Y qhe SR TRl TR ERTeS
gl 9=w gfawe ¥ deee g g
TIHATEED! AT FPIAIATE TF AP (abed
TS |

TS qRaaa e fawaerdt afEwmr enlr semfe
T3¢ df, WEl e &F Thar ¥ AR o
FET GiEd TF Al T ATMETEr STl TG
T feafa #aw T@E g | T A AE
A, AT A 0HIes, ¥ feswra T iar

- rlelll 5101 SGanedioe WUS fAfeics | Coop 2 GOVS
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T ITPT FiTaGATT EHIATS AT ATHEIF JAIEE (T WL e, X (TS Ghe STHESHT [9b1d
T 9 9w TS |

TRl AUTEETATS a9 ATATAT WEWTH g7 AR e, el s fasrwran T vt ghesue fafar e
AR IeATET SYFRVIES FRT T FANTH TR FNTET 6 Ty He o e | 9 ey afg
TYEAATH! A1 ANEE GleT JFH |

<A,

| I qHG faH, BT HoUa YERUREE®, ¥ Sl SREHUars 999 T fayary Sl T& 8T QrvhaR
TR TP FHawan A<h T A AR o Arevg | A, vl 99 U afw R qra fasier e
i TheT T ARAMGE  SABT BRAPHAT (HTAT T AR [GEREHT TF =T STHHT T8GR T Hio
YRUTEETE e |

qUEH faear ¥ qfqegarer AT 9 g7IarE A9 TRg | H O AbT 6 a9 T TUIEH AT, STHT Qe
TARARFEEH! AT A6 6 TRAHA F&TT T AT 6 |

9 A=A ATATHT ETHT ATHIRPT TGAT IROH THRAT Fre [MHEE (TIFL) S =R T HTHHAT
TS |

gYqrq !

ERECGE LN

NE AR
Jqq
W TRAE wue fathes

CGOp 2 GOVS | gRTdT Soaiedioe BhUs faifdics el -
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AT U, 083 H THT 10 H SISHT ¥ THISTHE!

IREH AT wUe fatweeH
ATAF a9 R050/59 I GATAF AHITH
it gfcas

em TR wue fafieedr it WER TETET IR FEAET TR SES, TaRESIeT I
FHA THE T qee Al aifes afiaree 1eg |

I AT FUE . A TRATE TR TR YT AER HE T8 YEAEE AR AR ey
FREE A WHl G | B TIGTHT WEHl IRASAEEA Srgpre Hed faeier T et aiad=er AR =
YRGS TR & IREH G | T P AR THESHT AR 99 Tiamern e faw, wifafies
TEHAT ST T, Fefoee TR T Tewal SRRIRGIHI T AT ATTFT T I S8 X Qel A eq
I FEAASHT T W F |

q. farTa auer FRERST fGeareET

e e wre fafidse TR SRR SRYd ¥ FReFE THia AU Ade FTT <
PINEEH TREATATHT U AHATH] AT AIGE AT (A0 T SR T Biga 95 S 8
MRIEH G | FFAA [ T, ST T ScUTEh YoTeh WIS TRASHEE d18 qediT TATsST T80
AT A, LT T SRS TR T8 ACH S | FHAA ARPST THE AR YIG FEAETAT
ARNRE TN T FHAT T IRASAT T ASAAEEATS TaGT T FEAT Iea@a g T Wt G |
FHEISH! AAHAE FHA Grabl AT, TEAE qEanT T i = gEedar < 3 |
FEAA TOR PAAPR W I fafesd Aifgs TR diee WA G, A1 FFAA ARSI NAX
A FIH @ TR AT Aeaerarn fasr o fafiee Ao e qad o Seamae iR E-wet
TARATE (Ao el TTHT YA MREHN F | A FFAEE AGH] A1 AT T3S, SR
e, T aefifar T sifew saereaET SrEia TR g T9 Aeee qae T June e
FEATFEAT T ZREH THLAT FUSH THE AT I TYAT (TCH T | FFAA STHBTAA OITH
FSAEE QESHE T, AT IAAS S ¢ P! TRUEG FATAIAT AH BN G | WHIAE
FISTT AT GheA, LA Iaf, S-FAG T qAiaR et a6 amre! qrafaear ek mears |
FHAA TS @ AT IROH M FAT0r RS Tore T To9E TG ATl AT BT
FEIIT TR A AT T e He@s g )| 3@ Ao A wew T qigfas aRkest aiemend
AT TACHT TG T FATEATHT bl TS & | H&T FFAGT qHad T qrvnarr K fafae
YFRIHT FHAT TG TG FagT T TS T30 G |

PRaTFaTIES:

%. Sl TEHTE ¢

® ZhEdl T ST GeE IR T QA6 TEAT TERIar 99T, ©E TG99 T e
AT AL §ASA |

® I ISA-HaA HeT WU Afhe®, TRAR FAAIEE T GNA TAIGAEEATS A T4 |

CGOP 2 GOVS | gRaTdT $odredioe thus feifoics K -
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g. YrEne fHEdl e
* qRuTa FHAIEE, AAASE, ST
® foll FFAIEEAT T T (@7 Fol FFleedrs Qrasie a9rsa)

Y T JTET | A 9T A9 (@RT TR @nthed - et R ST ) @ e wEer
M AR TR @i a1 e fewer @fie T afear @) awmr e et shEd s,
Y AT AT AT AFIBAieee AT HFIe! NAEE Gie T quf &qa1 fra=or fowa, afg 9o,

T RIS T B g T8 |
® FTIRAT T YW AT 6we, TeAe) a1 THING SRHrepal 8% 997 IvhaRl 18E |

. IRIATE SRIHAT AT
* 359 Ifg THTET HUH WEAT a1 FaAT FFAEEHT AT |
* 7g1 fae wives, =i T, ¥ fafst A/B TSv &AW )
° I WEH T FHA qHA ATAT A FIET g7 G968 A HAA TAT & TS, |

o, AFfTF T B+ (AlFs)
® PE, VC, 89 e, A1 THTAN T =ATIH Ay |

* IR-TERE AMEEH AT HATE Feher

- qrENe SfEdr

- T EE

- o T v

- AR TS

- = W@ v

IRMF =R/ AR Ffaes), (PE/®W $we) X @ ®we) A1 faifoa 19 Qe g 6 |

¥) VR FEA Fre

WA, I=A SHEH /S BISaT |

TENE THEdIe UF SUUHE 9N S qig NUH WEATHT B¢ T6E |

AP TEATHT A 14D, T FFAIATE ARG T4 qEpd AHET €1 |

e, gfat, aries T @y FEl K fAeEds 78 LG |

T, AT, AASAT A8 AITAB! AP AT TYAT ATEAT T4, | AT FLoATP! SIHT A9
TETer & faraet @ Heg |yt qatar e T ¥ Ed qe) fAiver s K
T O I T A G |

- Ml <511 Soacdice BUS fAfdics | CCop 2 GOVS
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I T AEHT

w3 e |

HH ¥
9 SRl ¥.¥ 3.9% 9.8¥ ¥3.5
R I qHT ¥R.¥5 YY¥.’5 (X.%0) (§0.00)
3 A W¥¥.55  |300%.¥3 ¥ERY) QLW
¥ TR T Hw ¥¥.9% 9.9 QU&5) [ (93.]Y)
¥ A = qHT 9599.¥% 9§ ¥5.5% 9&.5¥ R.55
% AT =T It 5R0 5R0 - -
° FH TR =[BT I 199,93 qo4¥.39 (%.45) (8.3%)
5 HAFR AR RR9.39 8R.3% 3IR5.0% ¥%.0%
? ST HATHT AT SHET PN PR ELER (R99.99) (1.5
0 |fi i MG Y ¥93. ¥R (U%.09) QIR
%9 RG] 9990.59 UYL [(¥389%)  [R&E.R¥
R | % arRT RR.§9 IRY.R QR¥.55) | (RR.¥5)
93 FA A 5% 509,99 (eR0.53) |(5R.30)
¥ | RS AR 3.3 ¥9] (¥ | R&.55)

R) UfeT qr swaRingd aikfeafa T aga@r e
%) ity afRkfefq

AR ARG TSATHH 281 IO THEAT FUE fafide (TIFL) 15 AfdF I &% a9
& fteew T ae favasata gfaeadl, niefie T worifas S0 ST aHeT Saas g )

et T ST aAHT FEe T
fa¥a T (Investment Industry) &0 FGET BT faf= S-S, AT, Tfafr T ST@arg qva4r

IREadEER THEHT & |
#) AR ¥ Wi A e

TR, WY, T F HFEE IMEEAT AR 959 AT & | 3T Sheed e =y
T FleFeS M (tight monetary policy) AIATEEH S, THA MU TS FTRAEAT HETH! G |
I T Private Equity, Venture Capital, ¥ Real Estate Investment |7 ST €2TCH & |

) SFNASAT TR IAE ¢

Al Robotics, CleanTech, Quantum Computing ST¥l yfafEEs T S AqE TG ﬂﬁ&' HTH
@ | Microsoft, Nvidia, Apple &l FFEE®HT Institutional Investors & ?gﬁ T TR
&1 | ESG -Environment, Social, Governance) ATIRUS ATIR (T TG AEE ATHT AT HEGH
AT AIATTE THF 8 ATl S |

CGOP 2 GOVS | gRTdT $oacdioe thUs feifoics ey -
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T) SQIGHT TS(RAT T

AR, P, gremfean, ARFeTRT B AAFeEATS Next China B 9T 2Res | Pafmat semean

AP AMGH T BRI ESAIHT BRUT (AT AT el "edl g |
©) ek T ¥ Sty fa

fait fora, feraraamdy R SRIRTER ET ART TG | COP28 W&AT TEATE®N Net Zero Target
R T fefera SO T SMava® 97 HARX Soci@ TN S | AT AFAT Green Bonds, Climate
Equity Funds, T Carbon Credit Market & '{& T G |

) T FfSfet TART (Fintech + WealthTech)

Al-powered Portfolio Management, Robo—Advisors, Blockchain TR Tokenized Assets, T
DeFi (Decentralized Finance) S&% T G |

TRERAT A FHEED AT Fintech WIHHES (&L Robinhood, eToro, Zerodha 3%
q AT TABATATS ATHNT TR T |

) Hedge Funds / Private Capital & a4 :

e Hedge Fund #20 SNFGHYUl SEATHT 9f AT € AT TRR@HT B, T &Y Hedge Fund
& Underperform TRI&SH S |

e Private Capital (Private Equity ¥ Venture Capital) AT dry powder (ﬂ‘ﬁﬁ gidEg W
TAMEUH $5f1) ok &R @, qR O SR A qAPAT A |

T) IPO T M&A Tifafafy :

e 0R-R0F AT FH HTH IPO T M&A THfafy 03 I feet & #e g faeak T
FATIA 83 |

o AT ¢F FHAIEEA Startups @RI (Acquisition) TR TUFITH FURHIBU TRIEHT S |
Q) T TS :

e Geopolitical Risk ('\W—E*T'I', HA-ATEA, TORAA-TSATH HGLT)
® Currency Volatility, Trade Barriers, T Capital Flow Regulation

o Al MIHE T TTET TY-EQT 4T AT SAA=aan

) TAFATR AN
* "Risk—-On" &1G&l "Risk—Off" NS Bo - At WA, feeR Am=T g I forepe (ST
Government Bonds, Dividend Stocks) T® ATHYT |

o qEFT HeA fFST T FHAEEHT fa¥are qea G |

fepy

ferraaardy ST SERT R qERAT O AR @iiRed! Fawr /T g | qiaty, gka S T SEawe
JIRP! Heed & qiafe 9838 9 TRERET ST SaTges T TR & 37 |

- Fll RS Soatcdioe BUS fAfdics | CGop 2 GOVS
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g. ey qitfefa:

AN T HA=TE I WUHS Tel 3k QEtaR AT, ASHTR FTE T Tt g=rar Sifiraan & |
ATH AP T IS QIEHITE TRGYAH TSHAT, 2RO FTHLAT RUe ARG TRgeIans
Y R TIAT TN fATaeRor T TEAT T T4 MU & | FHA STANAAIATS Sarar fa,
QAR fIHaars Fagq 9 T Gor Taiy et fahraan G 19 ARET TrafadieeaT Araars
Tfhag P B | TP TAEe® WM ATIRB! THIALAATE AE qAST Al @l & ,
el a9 AP FTATHATHT SARE S[PAHT A A& TERS, | AMHIATS IUNTF TTHT SIS TR
HATRAT JIE AT THE TTATEP! AR S Traagarar Afeww @ ik ey aikfeafaard
THY IS TG T |

AGTAH! GASTH! AT AT SR Aigy qikfeafa:
TR iy aitfeafd sEaR T AT g9 e faba =0

%) FIUL (Opportunities):

South Asia HT &1TH, AEAF, T TETE THETP! FAT TR (e qfpe, feAraas gie™, Twmw
aﬂﬁa) AYTAAT Spiritual Tourism, Eco—Lodges, Cable Cars, Wellness Retreats ST&T QiRATSTATAT fasir
T dieEd! ITET & W&l T4ed, Adventure, T Wellness Economy TR g1 JHEAT & |

o YTEfae® el ¥ qiswiae fafaaar
AT fewme, weTe, avrs, anfie drdemer (aepafaer, qwary, Qe aife) T aefas v
@fFe, TaaRIE) B AR TET |

o FIHI qrafoesar
AN THRA qAEAATE TP SURTH! TIHT [ATH F | "Visit Nepal" AWM, T 94eF atwa
TEtaR faAfurEr aeEer SEar I/ THI A |

o faefy s e A
Ty dew, e, wefas @@ ¥ e Jamn aa aiaera faeft S (FDI) ot /el § |
o FrESAH-FTSI FIhar (PPP)
FAAPR, FUI-ATARA K&@E (Timeshare), AT FAHTEA, ropeway, TH-ERH TMEATAT PPP
A AHAAIES TANT & qTeAel & |
o “FONUr-STETRT STHRT e
e T AT T AT IR AW AT 9 qe-w e T gegE e (e
YR SRR, TSIl TARATHA [PO AT ART fA) |

) ﬂ‘ﬁ?ﬁ' (Challenges):
o A T FRATEATTHAT AfERaT
FDI Wit wiRar feoit g, aftaon el fom afeamr &t =R a0

* TATER AW
e {AAT TR A&, TR FAME, R, W=ed, ICT 89 & (aiEr o 8y ST
FASAR S

CGOp 2 GOVS | gRTdT Soaiedioe thus faifdics Rl -
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o AT FRATH TIRAl FHAR
W T@the, fasa o, #X enfae ST {EHT THieaie AMEaar 9eqe Ta |

* TY SAYMNKE AT
W—W T It St o\ §, fSTRY rural tourism, adventure tourism

T

o TSI ATAN=IQQr I W Jorrer
T TEH AT FHEIR ATER AT G061 & g3 |

AR ARCT Fafd (Recent Trends):

* FIAAPR, FIEA-LR s ¥ RAE §FA0IPO TR M FAIHAT TR=ATE |

* fafae Trern folt s gfg, SRt TR, e, F@W, fadEn, e, WeerE A |
® Ecotourism Y €T{& TAETHT AT yafaer T |

® Digital marketing ¥ booking system & T3 a@ TTH |

ST ST (Energy Transition & Hydropower):
JqqqT ©
® AU : 40,000+ AT TAMIYA &FHAT, BT 3,000 (AT AA IeaTiadT
® qRA T SIARIHAT Power Trade Agreement (PTA) & HreaHaTe faga Fatasr awmamn
® South Asia AT F GIA NF TIAT TGS, TN Green Energy T ar€
UL
® IPP (Independent Power Producers) @8 FDI T DFIs (Development Finance Institutions ) &V
Y

® Grid—connected Solar & Microgrid Projects

HN AW T [ NANET

JAqqT
. , WA, STTATYTAT HY IR 9o HY G DA T AISRY fafer FHsiR

® SOITAT Organics, Export—Quality Packaging, Dehydrated Foods, Agri-Tech HT AT

® Cold Chain Logistics HT FDI
® Contract Farming + Processing Units

® Digital Agriculture Platforms
s-%HY T fefvteq o} :
JqqYT :
o fefvtesr TuTaRurer 74t soRer fasiaT

- el 5101 Soacdice BUS fAfdics | CCop 2 GOVS
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® HRAHAT Flipkart, Meesho T AYTAAT Daraz, SastoDeal Vertical e—-Commerce (aﬁ FashionTech,
Agro—eComm, Pharma—eComm) AT ﬂ@ e

® Subdomain-based vendor system (Eﬂa" BizBazar W& B2B2C W)
® Logistics, Payment Gateway ¥ Last—Mile Delivery AT ‘iT’ﬁ' [GER

AT 94l (ICT & BPOATES):

JqaqT ¢
* RAAT WO fafTaT TAR SERST IT Export Industry, SR BPO frata afg
® ATHT T FaAT TS AL A A

® Tech Park T IT Zones TAYAT 4 PPP HISH
® Startups, SaaS Ventures T Coding Academies AT Angel Investment
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Reg No. 1238

B.Keshav & Associates Cap N 1990

Mem No. 2096
Chartered Accountants PAN No. 121299189

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TOURISM INVESTMENT FUND LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statement

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Tourism Investment Fund
Limited (“the Company”), which comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad
31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), Statement of Profit or Loss, Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Other

Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects,
Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), Statement of Profit or
Loss and its Cash Flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards [NFRS].

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Nepal Standards
on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statement in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. We have
determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Responsibility of Management and those charged with governance for the Financial
Statement

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial
Statements of the Company in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material mlsstateme ) AN ATD

to fraud or error. ¢
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In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to

do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expresses,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have determined to communicate the following matters in accordance of the requirement
of Companies Act, 2063 and other regulatory requirements:

We have obtained all the information and the explanations which, the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

Based on our audit, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
Company.

The Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Profit or Loss Account, the Cash
Flow Statement, and the Statement of Change in Equity dealt by this report are in
agreement with the books of account maintained by the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to
us and so far appeared from our examination of the books of account of the Company, we
have not come across any case where the Board of Directors or any office bearer of the
company have acted contrary to the provision of law, or committed any
misappropriation or caused any loss or damage to the Company and violated provisions
of Companies Act, 2063, or acted in a manner, as would jeopardize the interest and the
security of the company, its shareholders and its clients.

The business of the Company has been conducted satisfactorily and operated within its
jurisdiction and has been ing as per Companies Act, 2063.

CA. Keshav Bhandari
Proprietor

et ()
’4 w

B. Keshav & Associates
Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 250616CA02096czfpC
Place: Pokhara, Nepal

Date: 2082.02.22
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited

Pokhara - 08, Newroad
Statement of Financial Position

As at Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Amount in NRs.
As at Asat As at
mo——" e Ashadh31,2081  _Ashadh31,2080 _ Sharwan 01,2079
1 ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 540,068 376,872 67,439,103
(b) Capital Work-In-Progress 3 - - =
{¢) Intangible Assets 4 4,048,493 5,498,493 =
(d) Deferred Tax Assets =} 277,984 151,706 69,741
(e) Investment 6 223,617,741 211,565,321 56,595,355
(f) Other Non- Financial Asset - = =
Total Non Current Assets 229,384,285 217,592,392 124,104,199
(2) Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 5,516,725 21,178,044 4,835,569
(ii) Short Term Investment 8 30,870,811 £9,078,968 131,527,461
(iii’ Other Financial Assets 9 58,000,000 59,100,000 -
(b) Inventories = = =
(¢) Other Current Assets 10 123,148,949 105,765,731 91,629,825
Total Current Assets 217,536,485 275,122,742 227,992,855
TOTAL ASSETS —__deon7i0 ___oa7isis __ IB008
1I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Share Capital 11 89,000,000 89,000,000 89,000,000
(b) Advance for Share Capital 97,773,289 105,431,383 104,477,737
(c) Preference Share 12 99,727,219 66,923,367 2,368,193
{d) Retained Earnings 13 13,522,533 35,239,268 5,641,710
Total Equity 300,023,041 296,594,018 201.487.640
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial habilities 14 35,835,851 41,342,318 36,778,261
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities 5 - - -
Total Non Current Liabilities 35,835,851 41342318 36,778,261
{2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Short Term Borrowings - - -
(ii) Trade Payables 15 146,465 141,447 1,514
(iii. Other Liabilities 16 11,013,434 10,983,492 3,706,846
(iv Provisions 1,065,934 - =
(b) Other Current Liabilities 17 98,836,046 143,653,860 110,122,793
Total Current Liabilities 111,061,879 154,778,799 113,831,153
Total Liabilities 146,897,730 196,121,117 150,609,414
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES %QZIIIT'HJ 49217153135 352“]97#@

A e t®
*\

Ram Changk Sharma ésll Kumari Slgdel
Chairman b Directo

a utam Dr. Nand4 S

tor Director.\
Radha Koirala Dhakal Hnrl Prasad Subedi
Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial §tatemems.

Senior Account Officer ‘OUR 1SM
anrESTMENT FUND L.

As per our report of even date

oo/

handari

B.Kcshnv & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited
Pokhara - 08, Newroad

Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
Amount in NRs.

— Note Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Income from Investment 18 9,956,079 9,356,537
Finance Cost 19 2,705,351 4,382,505
Gross Income 7,250,727 4,974,032
Other Income 20 5,000 123,072,740
Employee Benefit Expenses 21 640,213 10,246,801
Administrative Expenses 22 2,345,829 15,149,539
Selling & Distribution Expense 23 - 55,317,758
Other Operating Expense E -
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 34 649,379 83,877
Profit from operation 3,620,306 47,248,797
Non- Operating Expense 24 2,147,385 1,319,232
Profit before tax and staff bonus 1,472,921 45,929,565
Staff Bonus Expenses 147,292 4,728,960
Profit before tax 1,325,629 41,200,605
Current Tax Expense 918,642 11,685,012
Deferred Tax Expense 5 (126,278) (81,965)
Total Tax Expenses 792,364 11,603,047
Profit from Continuing Operations 533,265 29,597,558
Profit /(Loss) on discontinued operations (net of tax)
Net Profit for the year 533,265 29,597,558
Earnings Per Share
Basic and Diluted EPS 0.60 33.26

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
> As per our report of even date

. @ o,
# e
Ram Chapdra Sharma Mahesh| Kumari Sigde (’A. Keshav Bhandari
Chairman Director ./B.Keshav & Associates
) Chartered Accountants
—_— ;;L_“:m‘
Gautam Dr. Nanda sthal Sailesh Acharya
irector Director \ [[{) Director
S I\
Radha Koirala Dhakal Hari PrasaZili TOURISM m
. . INVESTHMENT FUND LTD.
Director Senior Account Officer
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited
Pokhara - 08, Newroad

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Figures in NRs.
Year ended Year ended
Particula Not
S o Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
1 Profit/(Loss) for the Year 533,265 29,597.558
{a) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Actuarial gains/(loss) on defined benefit obligations s -
- Net gains/(loss) on Available for sale of investments = -
- Income tax relating to above items - -
b) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss - =
I Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax - =
Total Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax
533,265 29,597,558

I )

Attributable to:
Equity Share Holders

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

A
(/AN
Ram Chasifira Sharma
Chairmar™
e Gautam
irector m
[ —
'|'UUR]$“ .
TMENT FUNE
Radha Koirala Dhakal W
Director

Dr. Ndgda\Shrestha
Director \

Haﬂ%ﬁi

Senior Account Officer

s per our report of even date

CA. Keshav Bhandari
B.Keshav & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(¢ lehx
2
SsilemTryT/

Director
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

21

22

23

24

T

Corporate Information

Tourism Investment Fund Limited (the Company) is a Public unlisted company , incorporated under the Companies Act, 2063 of
Nepal .The registered place & the principal place of operation is located at Pokhara-8, Kaski, Nepal. Toursim Investment Fund
Limited ( “the Company ") was established on Ashoj 16, 2076 (October 03, 2019) having PAN No .609643602.

The principal objective of the Company is to strategically allocate its financial resources across a diversified portfolio of long-term
and short-term capital market instruments, business ventures, and other related financial activities within Nepal. This is aimed at
maximizing shareholder value and ensuring optimal returns, while maintaining full compliance with all applicable laws, regulations,
and corporate governance standards,

Reporting Period
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements unless
otherwise stated.
The Company follows the Nepalese financial year based on Nepalese calendar, The corresponding dates for the English calendar are
as follows :
Relevant Financial Statement Date in B.S. Date in A.D.
Comparative NFRS Date

NFRS Transition date Shrawan 01 2079 17-Jul-22

Comparative Statement of Financial Position Date  Ashad 31, 2080 16-Jul-23

Comparative reporting period Shrawan 01, 2079 - Ashad 31, 2080 July 17, 2022 - July 16, 2023
Current Year NFRS Date

NFRS Statement of Financial Position Date Ashad 31, 2081 15-Jul-24

NFRS reporting period Shrawan 1, 2080 - Ashad 31, 2081 July 17, 2023 - July 15, 2024
Approval of Financial Statements by Directors
The accompanied Financial Statements have been authorized by the Board of Directors vide its resolution dated 2082.02.21 and
recommended for its approval by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.
Basis Of Preperation, Measurement And Significant Accounting Policies
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the
Accounting Standards Board Nepal, The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NFRS, which
includes all the standards and the related interpretations, as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and
pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), is consistently used.
The Financial Statement have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently to
all the periods presented in the financial statement. All the asset and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the
Company’s net operating cycle.Based on the nature of the products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realization of cash and cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purposed of
current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by Accounting
Standards Board (ASB) Nepal. The term NFRS, which includes all the standards and the related interpretations, as published by the
Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), is
consistently used. This is the first time adoption of NFRS by the company, and it complies with necessary NFRS requirements as
required by ICAN.
Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards(NFRS) requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the
company's accounting policies. The company makes certain estimates and assumption regarding the future events. Estimates and
judgments are continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In future, actual resulsmay differ from these estimates and assumptions.
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited

Pokhara - 08, Newroad
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

aiffiee gfddeal 20T0/0Ta

Radha Koirala Dhakal
Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

= &

TOUR
INVESTMENT FUND LTD.

Figures in NRs.
Year ended Year ended
L Particulars Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 1,325,629 41,200,605
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and 649,379 83,877
Profit on Sale / discard of property, plant and equipment - (122,928,351)
Finance cost 2,705,351 4,382,505
Cash Generated Before Working Capital Changes 4,680,359 (77,261,364)
Movement In Working Capital
| f(d ) in trade payabl 5,018 139,933
I d ) in other fi ial linbilities 29,942 7,276,646
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities (44,817,814) 21,846,055
Inerease / (decrease) in other Provisions 147292 -
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables 58,208,156 42,448 494
(Increase) / decrease in other financial assets 1,100,000 (59,100,000)
(Increase) / decrease in other assets (17,383,218) (14,135,906)
(I )/ d in inwvi ies - -
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities 1,969,735 (78,786,142)
Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities
Sale/ (Purchase) of property, plant and equipment (262,574) 184,408,211
(Increase) / Decrease in Investments (12,052,420) (154,969 966)
Capitalised WIP - -
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (12,314,994) 29,438,245
. Cash flow from / (used in) financing activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital - -
Increase/(Decrease) in Preference Share 32,803,852 64,555,174
Dividend Paid During the Year (22,250,000) -
Finance Cost (2,705,351) (4.382,505)
Short term borrowings = -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Non Current Liabilites (Financial Liability) (5,506,467) 4,564,058
Increase! (Decrease) in Other Comprehensive Income - -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Advance for Share Capital (7,658,094) 953,646
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (5,316,060) 65,690,373
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c) (15,661,319) 16,342,476
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 21,178,044 4,835,569
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5,516,725 21,1 Taﬂol
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - 33,174
Balances with banks 5,516,725 21,144,870
Cash and cash equivalents 5,516,725 21,178,044

*

cpv €

Mahesh Kumari Sigdel
Director

Senior Account Officer

A

Director

s>
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2.6

8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are prepared and presented in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional currency of the company as well.

Going Concern

The directors have made an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that it has the
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the directors are not aware of any material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt upon the company's ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to
cease opeartions of it. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Discounting

When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the Company considers the discounting of such
assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various internal and external factors have been considered for determining the
discount rate to be applied to the cash flows of company.

Materiality

In the Financial Statements, materiality and aggregation is dealt with in compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard- NASI
"Presentation of Financial Statemenis". Each material class of similar items is presented separately and items that are not similar in
nature or function are also presented separately unless these are immaterial.

Rounding
The amounts in the financial st ts are rounded off to the nearest Rupees, except where otherwise indicated as permitted by NAS
1 — “Presentation of Financial Statements™.

Comparative information

Accounting policies are consistently applied across all periods reported. The presentation and classification of financial figures
relating to previous period are regrouped or reclassified where relevant to facilitate consistent presentation and better comparability.

Events after the reporting date

Events after the reporting date are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the reporting date and the date when
the financial statements are authorized for issue. All material and important events that occurred after the reporting date have been
considered and appropriate disclosures have been made in line with NAS 10 — “Events After the Reporting Period”.

Current versus Non-Current classification
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on Current / Non-Current classification.

The company present assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non current classification. Based on
the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cashequivalents the
company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purposes of current/non current classification of assets.

The Company classifies an asset as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

i) Held primarily for the purposes of trading.

iiii) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period.

iv) Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The Company classifies an liability as current when it is:

i) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

ii) Held primarily for the purposes of trading.

iii) Settled within twelve months after the reporting period.

iv) No conditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months afier the reporting period. Y
) ]
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All other liability are classified as non current.
Deferred Tax Asset and liabilities are classified as non current assets and liabilities.

2.13 Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition

Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment provisions,
if any when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for
more than one year and the cost can be measured reliably. All Property Plant and Equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost
includes the acquisition cost or the cost of construction including duties and non-refundable taxes, expenses directly related to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for their intended use and in the case of qualifying asscts, the attributable
barrowing costs.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other minor
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

i) Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment other than free hold land is provided on Straight Line Method based on the estimated
useful life as per management estimates. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at cach financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The company based its assumptions and estimations on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.

Particulars Useful Life (in yrs) Salvage Value
Plant and Machinery 5 0%
Furniture and fixture g 0%
Office equipments 5 0%
Vehicles 10 0%

De- recognition

An item of property plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued used of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retitement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the
Statement of Profit or loss

2.14 Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery and system
development, awaiting capitalization. Capital work-in-progress would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use,
i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, Capital
work-in-progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

2.15 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially recognized at cost. Subsequently intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.

Amortization
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible asset shall be regarded as having an
indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of allof the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the

asset is expected generate net cash inflow for the entity.
r\@ ¢ \
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Amortization is recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss on straight line method (SLM) over the estimated useful life of the
intangible assets from the date that it is available for use since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss,

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM is categorized as stated below:

Particulars Useful Life (in yrs)
Website 10
Software Development 10

2.16 Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each date of the financial statement, if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised under Impairment expenses in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired.

2.17 Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents have an original maturity of less than three months. These enable the company to meet its short-term
liquidity requirements.
Cash and bank balances comprise cash in hand and balances with Banks as on reporting date,

2.18 Share Capital

Financial instruments issued by the company which evidences a residual interest in the asset of the company after deducting all the
liabilities are classified as the equity instruments. Such equity instruments is presented as share capital in the statement of financial
position which represents the par value of equity shares issued. The company has classified financial instruments as equity when there
is no contractual obligation to transfer cash, other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments.

2.19 Reserve and Surplus

During the year, the Company has transferred the current year's profit to retained eamnings after appropriations. A portion of the
retained earnings has been utilized for the payment of dividends to shareholders, which has been duly adjusted in the statement of
changes in equity. The reserves and surplus also include other statutory and non-statutory reserves, as applicable. All reserves are free
for distribution, unless otherwise stated.

2.20 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the company and the revenue and
associated cost incurred or to be incurred can reliably be measured.Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control
of thee goods or service to the customer. Revenue from operation is net of Indirect Taxes, returns and discounts.

Income recognition for the revenue streams is as below:-
i) Revenue from sales Of Services Operations
Revenue from the sale of Services shall be recognized when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

The service has been fully provided and the Company has satisfied its performance obligations as per the contract.

> The customer has obtained control of the service and can derive economic benefits from it.

> The transaction price is reliably measurable, ensuring no significant uncertainty in determining the value of the service provided.
> There is a reasonable expectation of collectability, considering the customer's ability and intent to make payment

The company has not commenced the operation by the end of fiscal year and hence the revenue from operation has not been recorded
in the books.

ii) Other Income
> Other Incomes have been recognized on accrual basis in the financial statement,
> Interest income is recognized on the time proportion basis using the effective interest rate. ) ]
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221 Foreign Currency Transactions

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to Nepalese Rupees using the
spot forcign exchange rate ruling at that date and all differences arising on non-trading activities are taken to ‘Other Operating
Income’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortized
cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items in foreign currency measured at fair value are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement or reporting of monetary ifems at rates different from those which were
initially recorded are dealt with in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, foreign currency differences arising on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognized in other comprehensive income

The company does not have any foreign currency denominated assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

2.22 Employee Benefits
i) Short term-Employment Benefits:

The cost of all short-term employee benefits (that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service) are recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.
The accruals for employee entitlements to benefits such as salaries, bonuses and annual leave represents the amount which the
Company has present obligation to pay as a result of the employee's services and obligation can be measured reliably.

ii) Post- Employment Benefits

A defined contribution plan is a post employment plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amount. The Company has no schemes of retirement benefits for staffs in the
form provident fund (defined contribution plan) as per the requirement of the Labour Act, 2074,

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The company's net obligaton in
respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have been eamed in the
current and prior periods, discount that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit-
obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. The company has no schemes of
retirement benefits for staffs in the form of defined benefit plan.

2.23 Income Tax

As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income Taxes) tax expense is the aggregate amount included in determination of profit
or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation. Income Tax expense is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss,
except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in
equity or in other comprehensive income. The Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect
of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of prior years

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts, and
it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liabillty on a net basis or simultaneously.

anDISM
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. Deferred income tax is
recognized using the statement of financial position and its tax base. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the
financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initlal recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.
Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized, The Company has
recognized deferred tax asset/liabilities on the items through which such temporary difference has arisen.

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using the effective tax rate of 25% (Previous Year 25%). Deferred tax liabilities
(net of liabilities) have been recognized in respect of all tax loss and other temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax asset
where the management believe it has become reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized in accordance with NFRS.

Inventories

As per NAS 2, "Inventories”, Inventories shall be carried at the lower of net realizable value or cost, Cost comprises of all costs of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the
necessary estimated expenses.

Company does not possess any inventories during the reporting date.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial asset is any asset that is:

a) Cash

b) An equity instrument of another entity;

¢) A contractual right:

i) To receive cash or anotheér financial asset from another entity; or

ii) To exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favorable to the entity;
or

d) A contract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments and is:

i) a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a variable number of the entity's own equity instruments; or

ii) a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the entity's own equity instruments.

The company’s principal financial assets comprises of assets held at fair value, trade and other receivables as well as advances,
A financial liability is any liability that is:

a) Contractual obligation:

(i) To deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

(ii) To exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the
entity; or

b) a contract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments and is:

i) a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of the entity's own equity instruments; or

ii) a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the entity's own equity instruments. i \
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While the company's financial liabilities consist of long-term borrowings, short term borrowings and trade payables.

Recognition and measurement

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities initially at its fair value plus in the case of Financial Assets and
financial liabilities not "at Fair value through Profit or Loss", transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial assets and financial liabilities. The transaction costs of FinancialAssets carried "at Fair Value through Profit or Loss" are
expensed in the Statement of Profit & Loss,

Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets

i) Financial Assets measured at amortized cost:

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These instruments are recognized at amortized cost using
effective interest rate. This classification includes trade receivables, advances and deposit. These instruments are mostly non-interest
bearing and where interest component is present the implicit interest rate approximates effective interest rate. Therefore, it is assumed
that the carrying amount represents the amortized cost of the assets.

ii) Financial Assets at fair value through other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI):

A financial asset is measured at Fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These
financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of other comprehensive income, This classification
includes equity securities held to maturity.

iii) Financial Assets at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is measured at FVTPL. These financial assets are measured at
fair value and changes are taken to state loss. This classification includes quoted or unquoted equity securities held for trading.

Compound Financial Instrument :

The Company has issued convertible, cumulative preference shares with a term of 16 years and a fixed annual dividend. In
accordance with NAS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation, the instrument is classified as a compound financial instrument
comprising a liability component—representing the present value of cumulative dividend obligations, calculated using a direct
discount rate of 14% (Borrowing rate of Unsecured loan) —and an equity component for the residual value. The liability component
is presented under “Accrued Preference Dividends™ and the equity component is not subsequently remeasured. The finance cost
accrued on the liability portion is recognized as finance cost under non-operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss

Investment (Available for Sale):

The investments made by the company have been classified as available for sale and are recognized at cost in accordance with
applicable accounting standards. The company intends to hold these investments for an indefinite period, and they are not held for
trading purposes. These investments are subject to periodic review by management to assess their continued value and relevance to
the company’s strategic and financial objectives.

Subsequent Measurement of financial liabilities:

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profits or loss are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the
liabilities are derecognized, and through amortization process.

All financial liabilities held by the company are classified as financial liabilities held at amortized cost using effective interest rate.
Financial liabilities held by the company are both interest bearing and non-interest bearing.

The non-interest-bearing instruments'carrying value represents the amortized cost. For interest bearing financial liabilities which
comprises of the bank loans, interest charged by the bank approximates effective interest rate and the rate is considered for
calculation of amortized cost of liability and the finance cost. The effect of initial charges and its impact on effective interest rate is
considered not material and the carrying value is considered to approximate the amortized cost.

De-recognition:

The Company De-recognizes financial assets when the right to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or when it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If substantially all the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor
transferred and the Company has retained control, the assets continue to be recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement. Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.
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Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any objective indication that an asset or a group of financial assets may
have been impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events occurring after the initialrecognition of the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Company considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:

i) Whether the counterparty is in default of payments.

ii) When a counterparty files for bankruptcy, and this would avoid or delay discharge of its obligation.

iii) Where the Company initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligatiop rif the counterpart.

iv) Where the Company consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished financial obligation, demonstrated by a
malerial forgiveness of debt or postponement of scheduled payments.

v) Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows of a group of
financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with specific individual financial assets

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

The company offsets the financial assets and liabilities, and presents the net amount in the Statement of Financial Position when and
only when, it has a legal right to set off the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Financing and Borrowing Cost:

As per NAS 23, "Borrowing Cost", Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of an asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the
Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Provisions, Contingent assets and Contingent Liabilities

As per NAS 37," Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets", Provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. An
entity recognizes provision when three basic criterias as listed below are met;

1) there is a present obligation as a result of past events.

ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying the future economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and

iii) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present
obligation that arises from the past events but is not recognised.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in financial statements.

Contingent assets is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existance will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements.
Company does not have any contingent liability for the reporting period.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The lease rentals under such agreement are recognized in the statement
of profit or loss as per the terms of the lease.

The Company recognizes rental expense from operating lease on a straight-line basis over the term of operating lease. Where the
rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to u.ampcnsste for lessors expected inflationary cost
increases, such increases are recognized in the year in which such benefits accrue.

Vass 2h 21
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As per NFRS 16, "Leases", at the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate,

However on our assumption of lease for to either short-term leases or leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the lessee
shall recognise the lease payments associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term or
another systematic basis. The lessee shall apply another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the
lessee’s benefit.

The Company has elected not to recognize ROU Assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value assets and short term leases for
which the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial recognition. Since the amount of lease rentals is of low value, NFRS
16 has not been applied and lease rentals has been recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss considering the lease as operating lease,

2.29 Related Party Disclosures
A) Relationships
A party is related to an entity if:
(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:
(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the entity (this includes parents, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries);
(i) has an interest in the entity that gives it significai
(iii) has joint control over the entity;
(b) the party is an associate (An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership, over which the
invesior has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.) of the entity.

B) Directors
Key Management Personnel and their immediate family members are also considered to be related parties for disclosure purpose as
per NAS-24 “Related Party Disclosures”.

As per Nepal Accounting Standard (NAS 24) “Related Party Disclosures”, Key Management Personnel are those having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity directly or indirectly. The Company considers the
members of its Board , Chief Executive Officer and all managerial level executives as Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the

company.
Following is the list of the directors bearing office at the July 15, 2024:

1) Ram Chandra Sharma Chairman

2) Mahesh Kumari Sigdel Director

3) Dr. Nanda Shrestha Director

4) Deepak Gautam Director

5) Sailesh Acharya Director

6) Radha Koirala Dhakal Director
Details of transactions with related parties is listed below: For FY 2080-81

Name Nature of Transaction Amount (NRs.)

Bandipur Cable Car & Tourism Limited Investment 101,226,400
Bandipur Cable Car & Tourism Limited Payable 2,385,787
Biz Bazar Limited Advance for Investment 108,791,341
Biz Bazar Limited Investment 10,200,000
Siddha Gufa Ropeway PvtLtd Payable 3,000,000
Budhimaa Chhimkeswori Darshan Pvt. Ltd Advance for Investment 3,400,000

As per NAS 24," Related Party Disclosure", control is defined as the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
50 as to obtain benefits from its activities. Control generally exists when an investor holds more than 50% of the voting power of an
investee, unless it can be clearly demonstrated otherwise.

Based on the shareholding structure, the Company is controlled by the following entity:

Name Shareholding % Nature of Relationship
R.K.D. Holdings Limited 78.65% Parent Company (Control)
-~
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2.30 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharcholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year atributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all potentially dilutive securities,

Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Net profit/ (loss) after tax as per statement of
(a) profit and loss attributable to equity 533,265 29,597,558
shareholders
Net Profit/ (loss) attributable to equity
®) shareholders adjusted for income dilution 2500450 20916,90
© Wcl.ghtcd average number of equity shares for £90.000 890,000
Basic EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares for
(d) Diluted EPS 2,027,000 1,653,000
(e) Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) 0.60 3326
(f) Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) 1.32 18.70
(g) Face value per equity share 100 100
231 Cash Flow Statement
The Company has reported its cash flow statement applying the "Indirect Method" in accordance with NAS 07 -"Statement of Cash
Flows".
‘Cash and Cash Equivalents’, as referred to in the statement of cash flows are the same as presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of financial position. *Cash Flows’ are inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents.
The Statement of cash flows reports cash flows during the period classified by operating, investing and financing activities as defined
hereunder:
. iy are the principal revenue generating activities of the reporting entity and other
U pating Aakivitios: activities that are not classified as investing or financing activities.
b) Investing Activities: are the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other long term investments.
¢) Financing Activities: are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed
equity and borrowed capital of the company.
2.32 CSR Reserve
Section 54 of Industrial Enterprises Act, 2076 provides the statutory requirement to set aside at least one percent of its annual profit
in each fiscal year for the purpose of performing the corporate social responsibility,
The company has not created any CSR Reserve during the period under reporting.
2.33 Comparative Information

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the company and are consistent with those used in the previous year. Area
in which accounting policies are changed , treatment of same has been given in the fi nanctal statement. Previous years figure have
been regrouped and/or rearranged whereever necessary to facilitate comparision.
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited
Pokhara - 08, Newroad
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Schedules forming an integral part of the Financial Statement as on 31st Ashadh , 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Deferred tax Note -5
Amounts (NRs.)
As at As at As at
Enrtioniscy Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Sharwan 01, 2079
Assets Base as per Financials 5.488.561 5,875,365 459,243
Assets Base as per Tax 4,376,625 5,268,543 180,280
Deductible/( Taxable) Temporary Difference (1,111,936) (606,822) (278,963)
Liability Base as per Financials - - -
Liability Base as per Tax - - -
Deductible/(Taxable) Temporary Difference - - -
Total of temporary/(taxable) difference (1,111,936) (606,822) (278,963)
Tax rate 25% 25% 25%
Deffered Tax Liabilities/ (Asseis) (277.984) (151,706) (69,741)
Total (277,984) (151,706) (69,741)
Deferred tax (expense)/income 126,278 81,965 69,741
Investment Note -6
Investment (Non Current) Note-6.1
Amounts (NRs.)
As at As at As at
Fhcg— Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Sharwan 01, 2079
Investment in other company's share 111,426,400 67,700,000 10,200,000
Investment in Secondary Market & Derivatives - - -
Total 111,426,400 67,700,000 10,200,000
Investment (Current) Note-6.2
Amounts (NRs.)
As at As at As at
P I
——— Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Sharwan 01, 2079
Investment Held to Maturity - = -
Total - = -
Advance for Investment Note-6.3
Amounts (NRs.)
I As at As at As at
Bk Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Sharwan 01, 2079
Investment in other company's share 112,191,341 143,865,321 46,395,355
Investment Held to Maturity - = »
Total 112,191,341 143,865,321 46,395,355
Cash and Cash Equivalent Note -7
Amounts (NRs.)
As at As at As at
Pl Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Sharwan 01, 2079
Cash in Hand (as certified by management) - 33,174 33,174
Cheque/Draft in hands - - -
Balance with Banks 5,516,725 21,144,870 4,802,395
Total 5,516,725 21,178,044 4,835,569
Note -7.1
Bank Balances Amounts (NRs.)
Asat As at As at
b Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Sharwan 01, 2079
Kumari Bank Limited 3,760,040 3,760,040 910,200
Nepal SBI Bank Limited 1,756,685 17,384,830 3,802,195
Total 5,516,725 \ 21,144,870 4,802,395
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Pokhara - 08, Newroad

Tourism Investment Fund Limited

Schedules forming an integral part of the Financial Statement as on 31st Ashadh , 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Short Term Investment Note - 8
Amounts (NRs.)
As at As at As at
TRt Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Sharwan 01, 2079
Short Term Investment 30,870,811 89,078,968 131,527,461
Total 30,870,811 89,078,968 131,527,461
Other Financial Asset Note -9
Amounts (NRs.)
Particulars As at As at As at
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Sharwan 01, 2079
Land Sales Receivable 58,000,000 59,100,000 -
Total 58,000,000 59,100,000 -
Other Current Asset Note - 10
Amounts (NRs.)
As at As at As at
Particul
AN Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Sharwan 01, 2079
Other Receivable and Advances 3,182,876 2,499,658 14,660,348
Advance Tax - 3,300,000 323923
Advance for Land 119,966,073 99,966,073 76,645,554
Total 123,148,949 105,765,731 91,629,825
\ -
¢
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited

Pokhara - 08, Newroad
Schedules forming an integral part of the Financial Statement as on 3 Ist Ashadh , 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Share Capital Note - 11
Equity Share Capital Note - 11.1
As at As at As at

Pt Ashadh 31,2081 Ashadh 31,2080 Sharwan 01,2079

Authorized Capital

(10,000,000 shares of Rs. 100 each) 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

Issued Capital

(10,000,000 shares of Rs. 100 each) 1,000,000,000 550,000,000 550,000,000

Subscribed and Paid- Up Capital

(890,000 shares of Rs.100 each) £9,000,000 89,000,000 89,000,000

Total 89,000,000 89,000,000 89,000,000

At the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 2080.12.03 (B.S.), the shareholders of the Company approved the subdivision of the
face value of each equity share from NPR 1,000 (One Thousand) to NPR 100 (One Hundred).This change was made in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act and following necessary amendments to the Memorandum of Association (MOA) and
Articles of Association (AOA).

a) Reconciliation of the number of Shares As at 15th July 2024

Equity Shares No of Shares Amount(in lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the year $90,000 £9,000,000
Addition during the year - -
Balance as at the end of the year 890,000 89,000,000

Equity Shares: The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of NRs.100 per share Each share holder is eligible for
one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the shareholder is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in annual general
meeling, except in case of interim dividend.In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholder eligible to receive the remaining assets of
the company after the distribution of the preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharcholding.

b) Right , Preferences and Restrictions attached to Shares

The Company has issued convertible, cumulative preference shares with a fixed annual dividend of 6.25%, redeemable or convertible
after 16 years from the date of issue. These preference sharcholders do not carry voting rights but are entitled to receive cumulative
dividend which is payable at the end of 16th year from the date of issue. In the event of liquidation, they have priority over equity
shareholders for repayment up to their capital and accumulated dividend entitlements.

Preference Share Note - 12
As at As at As at
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Sharwan 01, 2079

Particulars

6.25% Cumulative Convertible Preference Share 99,727,219 66,923,367 2,368,193
Total 99,727,219 66,923,367 2,368,193
Retained Earnings Note -13

Retained earnings is the amount of net profit left over for the business after it has paid out dividends to its shareholders, Retained
earnings is maintained by company to strengthen a company's financial position. Detail of such retained earnings and reserve has been

tabulated below:
Figures in NRs.
As at As at As at

Rardnling Ashadh 31,2081 Ashadh 31,2080 __ Sharwan 01, 2079
Opening balance 35,239,268 5,641,710 2,675,253
Prior Period Adjustment - - 270,022
Net profit after tax during the year 533,265 29,597,558 2,696,435
Dividend paid during the year ! 5
Total 35,239,268 5.64

[
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Pokhara - 08, Newroad

Tourism Investment Fund Limited

Schedules forming an integral part of the Financial Statement as on 3 1st Ashadh , 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Non Current Liabilities Note - 14
Figures in NRs.

As at As at As at
rextionien Ashadh 31,2081 Ashadh 31,2080 Sharwan 01,2079
Unsecured Loan 18,350,000 30,600,000 36,400,000
Accrued Preference Dividend 17,485,851 10,742,318 378.261
Total 35,835,851 41,342,318 36,778,261
Trade Payables Note - 15
Figures in NRs.

As at As at As at
Pitienions Ashadh 31,2081 Ashadh 31,2080 __ Sharwan 01, 2079
Creditors for Goods & Services 146,465 141,447 1,514
Total 146,465 141,447 1,514
Other Liabilities Note - 16
Amounts (NRs,)

Barilbindars As at As at As at
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Sharwan 01, 2079
Debenture Interest Payable E - 157,440
Audit Fee Payable 417,138 195,125 128,225
Staff Bonus Payable - 4,728,960 401,063

Salary and Wages Payables - 232,927 -
Rent Payable 38,700 - -

Miscellaneous Payable 10,557,595 5.826,480 3.020,117
Total 11,013,434 10,983,492 3,706,846
Other Current Liabilities Note - 17
Amounts (NRs.)

Particulars As at As at As at
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Sharwan 01, 2079
Statuatory Dues IE VAT, Excise , Income Tax Payable 11,318,586 13,961,148 2,224,201
Other Payable 87,517,460 129,692,712 107,898,592
Total 98,836,046 143,653,860 110,122,793

TOURISM

1 NVESTMEN

T FUND LTD.
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited

Pokhara - 08, Newroad

Schedules forming an integral part of the Financial Statement
for the year ended 31st Ashadh, 2081 (15th July, 2024)
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Income From Investment Note- 18
Amounts (NRs.)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Finance Income 9,956,079 9,356,537
Total 9,956,079 9,356,537
Finance Cost Note - 19
Amounts (NRs.)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Interest Expenses 2,704,558 4,380,070
Bank Charges 793 2,435
Total 2,705,351 4,382,505
Other Income Note - 20
Amounts (NRs.)
Year ended Year ended
Phrtuias Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Gain on Sale of Asset - 122,928,351
Miscellaneous Income 5,000 144,390
Total 5,000 123,072,740
Employee Benefit Expenses Note - 21
Amounts (NRs.)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Salary Expenses 590,210 9,760,767
Allowance Expenses 50,003 128,000
Staff Welfare Expenses - 358,034
Total 640,213 10,246,801
Administrative Expenditure Note - 22
Amounts (NRs.)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Tea and Tiffin Expenses 53,550 1,097,848
Consultancy Fee 72,889 250,210
Travelling and Accommodation 249,882 593,241
Audit Fee 225,000 197,750
House Rent Expenses 864,555 4,543,984
Miscellaneous Expenses - 2,673,323
Office Expenses 367,324 2,351,594
Printing and Stationary 145,578 300,565
Communication Expenses E 266.587
Fuel Expenses 59,000 70,200
Water and Electricity - 584,259
Registration and Renewal 285,451 481,370
Canteen Expenses - 1,738,607
Advertisement Expenses 22,600
Total \ 2,345,829
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited
Pokhara - 08, Newroad

Schedules forming an integral part of the Financial Statement
for the year ended 31st Ashadh, 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Selling & Distribution Expenses Note - 23
Amounts (NRs.)
Particuliss Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Selling & Distribution Expenses - 55,317,758
Total - 55,317,758
Non-Operating Expenses Note - 24
Amounts (NRs.)
Year ended Year ended
Particula
— Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Finance Cost 2,147,385 1,319,232
Total & 2,147,385 1,319,232
_.__-——-——’z;’l_\’/"h:\/,—- (‘ bl v ? \
\ (
\

e

Iz

{8
'“‘;'115“",_. g’i FUND L

] ':l?""

- AWl TR51dT Sodcdioe HUS fAfdTes | CGOP 2 GOVS



m ufaaaa Q0TO/0T9 \‘?g\é{@“

e

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES Note - 25

25.

253

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets comprise trade and other
receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arrive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market prices comprise four types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, commodity price risk and other price risk, such as
equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and deposits.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s bank
overdraft and short term deposits.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by negotiating with highly reputed commercial banks.

b) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s
operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different currency from the Company’s functional currency).

The Company manages its foreign currency risk by not holding the payables in foreign currencies for longer duration. Also, to the
extent doable, the Company hedges its foreign exchange exposures by executing forward contracts to minimize risk caused by
foreign exchange fluctuations. There are no open forward contracts as at Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024),

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institations,

Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds on a regular basis through cash forecasts.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts

and bank loans. Access to sources of funding is sufficient. b
2 //o//
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26.1 First time adoption of NFRS Note - 26
The Company has prepared the opening Statement of Financial Position as per NFRS as of Shrawan 1, 2078 (the transition
date) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by NFRS, not recognising items of assets or
liabilities which are not permitted by NFRS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to NFRS as required under NFRS,
and applying NFRS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities. However, this principle is subject to the certain
exception and certain optional exemptions availed by the Company as detailed below.

i) Recognition of Property, Plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company has elected to measure its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their actual historical purchase
cost from their respective dates of acquisition, instead of continuing with the carrying values under previous GAAP.
Accordingly, the original purchase prices less Depreciation have been used as the deemed cost for these assets at the transition
date in accordance with the exemptions permitted under NFRS 1 — First-time Adoption of NFRS.

26.2 Reconciliation between previous GAAP and NFRS
The following reconciliations provide the effect of transaction to NFRS from previous GAAP in accordance with NFRS 1.

a) Retained Earnings as at 01-04-2079

Particular Amount
Retained Earnings under previous GAAP on 01-04-2079 5.371,688
Adjustments:
Change in accounting policy:
Depreciation 235,992
Assets written off -
Finance Cost (46,453)
Deferred tax adjustment (net) 80,483
Retained Earning under NFRS at 01-04-2079 5,641,710
b) Net Profit for the year ended 31-03-2080
Particulars For FY 2079-80
Profit/(loss) after tax under previous GAAP 30,783,461
Impact of Depreciation (40,801}
Finance Cost (1,319,232)
Impact of Gratuity expense . -
Impact of Deferred Tax 174,130
Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) as per NFRS at 31-03-2080 29,597,558

¢) There are no material adjustments to the statements of cash flows as reponed under previous GAAP.

A" 4
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B.Keshav & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Reg No. 1238
Cop No. 1392

Mem No. 2096
PAN No. 121299189

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TOURISM INVESTMENT FUND LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statement

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Tourism
Investment Fund Limited (“the Company”), which comprises the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2081 ( July 15, 2024), Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements present fairly, in all
material respects, Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15,
2024), Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and its Consolidated Cash Flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards [NFRS].

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the
Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statement in
Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. We
have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Responsibility of Management and those charged with governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statement

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company in accordance with Nepal Financial
Standards (NFRS), and for such internal control as management determines is n
enable the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements that are free fro
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expresses.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

[ S,
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have determined to communicate the following matters in accordance of the requirement
of Companies Act, 2063 and other regulatory requirements:

+  We have obtained all the information and the explanations which, the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

« Based on our audit, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
Company.

« The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss Account, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, and the Consolidated

Statement of Change in Equity dealt by this report are in agreement with the books of
account maintained by the Company.

+ In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to
us and so far appeared from our examination of the books of account of the Company, we
have not come across any case where the Board of Directors or any office bearer of the
company have acted contrary to the provision of law, or committed any
misappropriation or caused any loss or damage to the Company and violated provisions
of Companies Act, 2063, or acted in a manner, as would jeopardize the interest and the
security of the company, its shareholders and its clients.

» The business of the Company has been conducted satisfactorily and operated within its
jurisdiction and has been functigpiagas per Companies Act, 2063.

: *g’SHAV &

CA. Keshav Bhandari
4}% *
Proprietor Y, Nepa\:

B. Keshav & Associates
Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 250616CA02096UsrVd
Place: Pokhara, Nepal

Date: 2082.02.22
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited
Pokhara - 08, Newroad
Consolidated S of Fil ial Position
As at Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Amount in NRs.
= Consolidated Standalone
Fatenlars Note As at Asat As at Asat As at Asat
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 Ashadh 31, 2081 _Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079
I ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 19,466,547 24 462,825 93,027,937 540,068 376,872 67,439,103
{b) Capital Work-In-Progress 3 2 5 - - - >
{c) Intangible Assets 4 41,115,802 44,172,067 19,779,862 4948493 5498493 -
(d) Deferred Tax Assets 277,984 151,706 69,741 277,984 151,706 69,741
() Investment 5 121,914,500 124,284,520 1,610,521 223,617,741 211,565,321 56,595,355
() Other Non- Financial Asset - - - -
Total Nen Current Assets 182,775,233 193,071,118 114,488,060 229,384,285 217,592,392 124,104,199

(2) Current Assels
(&) Financial Assets

(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 6,047,657 21,993,210 7.258,875 5,516,725 21,178,044 4,835,569
(ii) Trade Receivables 7 52,196,677 110,234,353 154,040,915 30,870,811 B9,078,968 131,527 461
(iii Other Finuncial Assets # 58,504,103 59,342,508 165,200 58,000,000 59,100,000 -
(b) Inventories 1,550,492 1,104,391 1,463,342 - - -
() Other Current Assets 9 125,922 909 109,457,225 94,193,231 123,148,949 105,765,731 91,629,825
Total Current Assets 244,221 838 302,131,688 257,121,564 217,536,485 275,122,742 227,992,855
TOTAL ASSETS 426,997,070 495,202,805 371,609,624 920,770 492,715,135 352.,097.05
11, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Share Capital 10 £9,000,000 89,000,000 £9,000,000 89,000,000 89,000,000 89,000,000
(b) Advance for Share Capital 97,773,289 105,431,383 104,477,737 97,773,289 105,431,383 104,477,737
(€] Preference Share 11 99,727,219 66,923,367 2,368,193 99,727,219 66,923,367 2,368,193
(d) Retained Eamings 12 (34,322,052) 4,275,125 (2.663.472) 13,522,533 35.239.268 5,641,710
Total Equity Attributable
to Equity Holders 252,178,456 165,629.875 193,182,458 300,023,041 296,594,018 201,487,640
{a) Mon Controlling Interest (NCT) 2,000,347 9,766,437 3,993.434 - - -
Total Equity 254,178,804 275,396,312 197,175,892 300,023,041 296,594,018 201,487,640
Liabilities
(1) Non-current linbilities
{a) Financial liabilities 13 41,648,711 47,854,061 44,250,219 35,835,851 41342318 36,778,261
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities 3,160,752 2223317 1,070,802 - - =
Total Non Current Liabilities 44,809,463 50,077,378 45321,021 35,835,851 41342318 36,778,261

12) Current labilities
(n) Financial Liabilities

(1) Short Term Borrowings 14 705,246 960,215 638,549 - - 5
(ii) Trade Payables 15 4,564,087 1,482,576 409,402 146,465 141,447 1,514
(iii Other Liabilities 16 15,646,940 20,476,970 15,830,112 11,013,434 10,983,492 3,706,846
(v Provisions 1,065,934 - - 1,065,934 - -
(b) Other Current Liabilities 17 106,026,596 146,809,354 112,214,648 98,836,046 143,653 860 110,122,793
Total Current Linbilities 128,008,804 169,729,115 129,112,711 111,061,879 154,778,799 113,831,153
Total Lisbilitics 172,818,267 219,806,493 174,433,732 146,897,730 196,121,117 150,609,414
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 416127!032 495,202.805 é!!&ﬂi ﬂﬂﬂeﬂﬂ 492!'“;[2? 352,097,053

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

"
e — As per our report of even date
’»
h Kumar Sigdel CA. Keshav' ari

Director B.Keshav & Associates

/ Chartered A tants
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Sailesh Acharya
Director

Dr. Nan
Director

Hari Prasad Subedi

Radha Koirala Dhakal
i Senior Account Officer
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited

Pokhara - 08, Newroad
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Amount in NRs.
Particulars Note Consolidated Standalone
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31,2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Revenue From Operation 18 24,056,254 29,357,247 9,956,079 9,356,537
Cost of Sales 19 12,271,545 6,868,717 2,705,351 4,382,505
Gross Income 11,784,709 22,488,529 7,250,727 4,974,032
Other Income 20 36,441 123,318,330 5,000 123,072,740
Employee Benefit Expenses 21 5,358,610 26,592,904 640,213 10,246,801
Administrative Expenses 22 10,949,605 33,584,524 2,345,829 15,149,539
Selling & Distribution Expense 23 - 55,317,758 - 55,317,758
Other Operating Expense - - = 2
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 3,4 7.914,134 6,204,568 649,379 83.877
Profit from operation (12,401,199) 24,107,107 3,620,306 47,248,797
Finance Cost 24 2,973,846 2,447,296 2,147,385 1,319,232
Profit before tax and staff bonus (15,375,045) 21,659,811 1,472,921 45,929,565
Staff Bonus Expenses 147,292 4,728,960 147,292 4,728,960
Profit before tax (15,522,337) 16,930,851 1,325,629 41,200,605
Current Tax Expense 918,642 11,685,012 918,642 11,685,012
Deferred Tax Expense 5 811,157 1,070,550 (126,278) (81,965)
Total Tax Expenses 1,729,799 12,755,562 792,364 11,603,047
Profit from Continuing Operations (17,252,136) 4,175,290 533,265 29,597,558
Profit /(Loss) on discontinued operations (net of tax)
Net Profit for the year (17,252,136) 4,175,290 533,265 29,597,558
Attributable to:
Equity Share Holders (16,347,177) 6,938,597 - -
Non Controlling Interest (904,960) (2,763,307) - -
Earnings Per Share
Basic and Diluted EPS - - 0.60 33.26
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
s As per our report of even date
A VAL
o : |
Ram Cha Sharma Mahesh Kumar Sigdel CA. Keshay Bhandari
Chairman Director B.Keshav & Associates
‘ : Chartered Accountants
. A
k Gautam Dr. Nanda §h 8 ﬁ;mm
irector Director Director

Radha Koirala Dhakal
Director

-

Hari Prasad Zubedl

Senior Account Officer

- Ul <5101 Soaitcdioe hUs fAfdics | CGOp 2 GOVS



%

aiffes gfddeer Q0To/0KA \ :

Jopanq
slIRPY ysafeg

=

SJUBIUNODY PaIdley)
SQIBIO0SSY % ARUSIY'g
Hepusyg ABYSIY VD

Ty

1221J0) JUNOIDY I0MIDG
mvon:wv_uMm ey
- 1 sopang

IPayy epuey “iq

=

1010211(]
1B}BYQ B[e10Y] BypEy

sy,
@ Sz,
N7

10302117
wejnes) yed

uewLey)
BULIRYS ADURYD) WY
A
‘

‘SiuawRel§ [Broueut g oy jo wed [exdsyu ue are saou Fukuedwoase dy |

1sa1au] urjonuoy) uop
S1I9p[oH areys Aynby
0] qEINQNY

(I1+1) X¥3 Jo Jou “1eadk 3y J0j awoduy aalsmayaaduio) wio], I

X&) Jo Jou ‘1eaf a3 10j awoduy sAisudYIIdwo) PYPQ |1

Swia)t uronn 0] Sunejas KB awoouf -
SIUAUNSIAUL JO B[S JOJ S]qe[IeAY U0 (Ssof)/suted jaN -
suonesijqo 1yauaq paujap uo (ssof)/sured [euenay -

ISSE[331 3q [/ 60 SWidi] (8
183§ 2Y3 10) ($50°)/ M0 |

SIENONIE]

18P U2A2 Jo podar ano Jad sy
- - (L0E'€9LT) (096'706)
= = L65'8E69 (LLI'LPE9T)
8SS°L6S'6T S9T'EES 06Z°SLI'Y (OET°ZSTLY)
8CC LS 6T S9T'EES 06T°SLIY (9€1°Z8T'L1)
0807 ‘IE ypeysy 1807 “I£ ypeysy 0807 ‘L€ UPEYSY [80Z ‘I€ Ypeysy -
papua aeay PIpud avIx Papua awa § Papua aBa N
JUo[EpUEIS pajepijosuo))
‘SUN Uy soanSyy

(¥Z0T ‘$1 4Inf) 180T ‘1€ yPeySY uo papua seak ayp 104
awoou] aAIsuAGRIdWOD) JAYIQ JO WUSWAIRIS PAIEPIOSUO,)
PROIMIN] ‘R0 - BIBYNOG
PONWI puny JUSMIISIAUJ WSLINO ],

x
9

CGop 2 GOVS | gR5TdT $6aNcdice BhUs [foics



W

aiffeb Ufidgar 20T0o/0Tq

SIURIUNOIY PAIIEY)
SOIRIDOSSY ) ARYSIY'E
tw@uzx )

o

2P uaA Jo podas mo Jad sy

Jopvang]

12010 WNOIDY JOMIS

k Ipaqng peseld pef

1opanq
[EYEHQ TR0 BYPEY

0
wmne

By wey

v

BUAIEYS

‘

"sjuawaelg [esueul] ay jo ped s ue aw sajou Su{uedinoaos ag,

FOR'SLIPST LPE000'T (7SO'ZZEFE) 6RTELLL6 617°LTL 66 000°000'68 1807 ‘1€ UPRYSY )u SY
(¥60°859°L) $ . (P60°859°L) - [e11de) 3184 90UBAPY Ul 33UBY)
- - - 1ead 2 Buunp SA13521 0 13ysuw |
(PIP'65S'ED (060'99L'L) (LLI"L6S'RE) - 7S8'E08'TE - J¥5A 91} SULIND DO} IABUIGIIAI0) [S10]
(000°0s7°20 - (000°05TTD) . 1eal 2y Faump pred puapialg
(Ogr'zsz'Ly) - (ogr°zsT'el) . 1mak 21 10§ 1oIg
(0£1°198'9) (060'99L°L) 096106 - 1sa101u] Surjonuo) VoK
- s = - swayi pouad soud 10) waunsnfpy
IS8'E08'TE = - TSB'E08'ZE = [eide) areys jo anssy|
TIE96E'SLY LEP'O9L'6 STI'SLTY EBETEF'SOT LOE'EL6'99 000°000°68 0807 ‘IE UPHUSY ¥ Y
& c g E - [ende)) 25RYS J0J dUBAPY
- - - - - Jeak ayp Sunnp pred puapiaiq
LIE'9E5'8 £00'ELL'S LOE'E9LT . . - Isaua1u] SUIlONUOD UON
078°805°s9 - - 9P9'€56 PLI'SSS' O - jendes a1eqs jo anss]
. - = - - awoouy aasuayaIdwod LI
06T°SLI'Y = 06T'SLIY % - 1k 21 J0j 1J0I]
- - - - sway pouad toud 10 Juaunsnipy
T6R'SLI'L6] PEV'E66'E (ZL¥'€99'T) LEL'LLY'POI €61°89ET 000'000'68 6L07 ‘10 UEMEIYS Ju S¥ duUBjEg
daEyg
s3] ende) Ende)
Aynbg 0], | sBuyiey poureoy MDUIINJAL] AGPIIAT0D) SAE[NIIE]
dugjjoyuoy -uoy 21BYS J0] IIUBAPY JAPUIIND %ST) axeys Aymby

(#20z ‘s1 AM() 180T ‘1€ YPeYsy uo papud 1eak g so4
Linbyg 1 sa3uey) Jo JUSWAMS PIIEPIISUO))
PEOIMAN ‘g() - BIBIDO]

PRI PUN ] JUIUIISIAU] WISLINO Y,

SoaNedioe WUS fAfdics | CCOp 2 GOVS

SRaTd

%



e

aifiics yfddeel 20C0/0Ta
Tourism Investment Fund Limited
Pokhara - 08, Newroad
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
Figures in NRs.
Consolidated Standalone
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax (15,522,337) 16,930,851 1,325,629 41,200,605
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amorti 7.914,134 6,204,568 649,379 83,877
Profit on Sale / discard of property, plam and equipment (14,915) (123,051,65T) - (122,928,351)
Finance cost 2,973,846 2.447.296 2,705,351 4,382,505
Cash Generated Before Working Capital Changes (4,649,273) (97.468,942) 4,680,359 (77,261,364)
Movement In Working Capital
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 3,081,511 1,073,174 5,018 139,933
| /(d ) in other fi ial liabilities (4,830,030) 4,646,858 29,942 7,276,646
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities (40,782,759) 34,594,707 (44,817,814) 21,846,055
Increase / (decrease) in Provisions 147,292 (11,685,012) 147,292 -
(E ) d in trade receivabl 58,037,675 43,806,563 58,208,156 42,448,494
(Increase) / decrease in other financial assets 838,405 (59,177,308) 1,100,000 (59,100,000)
(Increase) / decrense in other assets (16,465,684) (15,263,994) (17,383,218) (14,135,906)
a )/ d ini jes (446.101) 358,951 . =
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (5,068,962) (99,115,005) 1,969,735 (78,786,142)
B. Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities
Sale/ (Purchase) of property, plant and equi 153,325 161,019,996 (262,574) 184,408,211
(1 )/ Dy in Invest 2,369,621 (122,673.999) {12,052,420) (154,969,966)
Capitalised WIP - -
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities 2,522,945 38,345,996 (12,314,994) 29,438,245
C. Cash Mow from / (used in) financing activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital - - - -
I (D ) in Prefi Share 32,803,852 64,555,174 32,803,852 64,555,174
Dividend Paid During the Year (22.250,000) - (22,250,000) -
Finance Cost (2.973.846) (2,447,296) (2,705,351) (4,382,505)
Short term borrowings (254,969) 301,666 - -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Non Controlling Interest (6,861,130) 8,536,311 - -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Non Current Liabilites (Financial Liability) (6,205,350) 3,603,843 (5.506,467) 4,564,058
L [ (Dy ) in Other Comprehensive I - - - -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Advance for Share Capital (7.658,004) 953,646 (7,658,094) 953,646
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (13.399,537) 75,503,344 (5,316,060) 65,690,373
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c) (15,945,554) 14,734,335 (15,661,319) 16,342,476
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 21,993,210 7,258,875 21,178,044 4,835,569
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,047,657 21,993,210 5,516,725 21,178,044
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - 33,174 - 33,174
Wallet 98,504 123,565 - -
Balances with banks 5,949,152 21836471 5,516,725 21,144,870
Cash and cash equivalents 6,047,657 21,993,210 5,516,725 21,118.044—
The accompanying notes are an integral pant of the Financial Statements.
per our report of even date
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

21

22

Corporate Information

Tourism Investment Fund Limited (the Company) is a Public unlisted company , incorporated under the Companies Act, 2063 of
Nepal .The registered plnce & the principal place of operation is located at Pokhara-8, Kaski, Nepal. Toursim Investment Fund
Limited ( “the Company"' ) was established on Ashoj 16, 2076 (October 03, 2019) having PAN No 609643602,

The principal objective of the Company is to strategically allocate its financial resources across a diversified portfolio of long-term
and short-term capital market insf business and other related financial activities within Nepal. This is aimed at
maximizing shareholder value and ensuring optimal returns, while maintaining full compliance with all applicable laws, regulations,

and corporate govermnance standards,

The Consolidated Financial St of the Company for the fiscal year ended |5th July 2024 comprise the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the 'Consolidated' and individually as the 'Standalone’).

Reporting Period

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these fi ial unless
otherwise stated.

The Company follows the Nepalese financial year based on Nepalese calendar. The corresponding dates for the English calendar are
as follows @

o+ 2,

Rel. Financial Stat t Date in B.S. Date in A.D.
Comparative NFRS Date

NFRS Transition date Shrawan 01 2079 17-Jul-22

Comparative St of Financial Position Date  Ashad 31, 2080 16-Jul-23
Mﬁﬁiw Shrawan 01, 2079 - Ashad 31, 2080 July 17, 2022 - July 16, 2023
Current Year NFRS Date

NFRS Statement of Financial Position Date Ashad 31, 2081 15-Jul-24

NFRS in, i _Slltlwm I,ZOEQ-M__\a_dSI, 2081 July 17, 2023 - July 15, 2024

Approval of Financial Statements by Directors

The accompanied Financial Statements have been authorized by the Board of Directors vide its resolution dated 2082.02.21 and
recommended for its approval by the Annual G | Meeting of the shareholders

Basis Of Preperation, Measurement And Significant Accounting Policies

A. Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the fiscal year ended 15th July 2024 have been prepared in accordance
with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) 10 issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and as pronounced
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual hasis and under the assumption of a going concern. The term "NFRS"
tudes all the applicabl dards and rclated interp ions issucd by ASB Nepal.

Ly

These fi ial the lidated fi | position and performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Consolidated”), and are prqmrcd using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events m similar circumstances.

The Consolidated financial Statements of the company as at and for the year ended 31" Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024) comprise the
company (Parent Company) and its Subsidiaries (together referred to s the "Group"). The subsidiaries of the company is Biz Bazar
Limited. The Financial Statements of all companies in the Group have a common financial year which ends on 31st Ashad 2081.

All assets and liabilitics have been classified into current and non-current categories based on the Group's net operating cycle, which
is determined to be 12 months, considering the nature of its operations and the period required to realize assets and settle liabilities.

B. Principles of Consolidation
1. The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 15th July, 2024.

2. Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the parent. Cantrol exists when the parent has power over the investee, is exposed to variable
returns, and has the ability to affect those retumns.

3. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are consolidated on a line-by-line basis from the date the parent obtains control until the
date such control ceases.

B. Standalone Financial Statements

The Standalone Fi ial St ts of the Company for the fiscal year ended 15th July 2024 have also been prepared in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and as pronounced by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

The fi ial have been prepared on a going concern and accrual basis, applying i li istently to all the
periods presented. Assets and liabilities have been classified into current and uon-cumnl as pcr the (.umpmy s net operutmg cycle,
which has been determined as 12 months based on the nature of its products and Lhc time |
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Statement of Compliance

Both the Consolidated and Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in full compliance with the Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS). This includes all applicable standards and related interpretations issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB)
Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

This is the first-time adoption of NFRS by the Company, and the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable transitional provisions and disclosure requirements as mandated by ICAN and ASB Nepal.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards(NFRS) requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the
pany's ing policies. The pany makes certain estimates and assumption regarding the future events, Estimates and

judgments are continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In future, actual result may differ from these estimates and assumptions.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are prepared and presented in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional currency of the company as well.

Going Concern

The directors have made an of the Company's ability to continue as a going concem and is satisfied that it has the
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the directors are not aware of any material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt upon the company's ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liguidate or to
cease opeartions of it. Therefor, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Discounting
When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the Company considers the discounting of such
assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various internal and external factors have been idered for determining the

discount rate to be applied to the cash flows of company.

Materiality

In the Financial Statements, materiality and aggregation is dealt with in compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard- NASI
"Presentation of Financial Statements”, Each material class of similar items is presented separately and items that are not similar in
nature or function are also p ted separately unless these are immaterial.

Rounding
The amounts in the financial statements are rounded off to the nearest Rupees, except where otherwise indicated as permitted by NAS
1 — “Presentation of Financial Statements”.

Comparative information

Accounting policies are consistently applied across all periods reported. The p ion and classification of financial figures
relating to previous period are regrouped or reclassified where relevant to facilitate consistent presentation and better comparability.

Events after the reporting date

Events after the reporting date are those events, favorable and unfavorabl that occur between the reporting date and the date when
the financial statements are authorized for issue. All material and important events that occurred after the reporting date have been
considered and appropriate disclosures have been made in line with NAS 10 —“Events After the Reporting Period™

Current versus Non-Current classification
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on Current / Non-Current classification.

The company present assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non classification, Based on
the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cashequivalents the
company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purposes of current/non current classification of assets.

The Company classifies an asset as current when it is:

i) Expeeted to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

ii) Held primarily for the purposes of trading.

iii) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period.

iv) Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting

All other assets are classified as non-current. ' \

NMW @ 2

i

\

CGOP 2 GOVS | gRTdT $6acdioe hUs [e1foies

L

o

-



aIffes gfdfdger 20To/0TAa \‘,%{6)

213

2.14

2.15

The Company classifies an liability as current when it is:

i) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

ii) Held primarily for the purposes of trading.

iti) Settled within twelve months after the reporting period,

iv) No conditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liability are classified as non current.

Deferred Tax Asset and liabilities are classified as non current assets and liabilities.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition

Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment provisions,
if any when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for more
than one year and the cost can be measured reliably. All Property Plant and Equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the
acquisition cost or the cost of construction including duties and non-refundable taxes, expenses directly related to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for their intended use and in the case of qualifying asscts, the attributable borrowing costs.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a scparate asset is derccognized when replaced. All other minor repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

i) Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment other than free hold land is provided on Straight Line Method based on the estimated
useful life as per management estimates. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The company based its assumptions and estimations on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.

Particulars Useful Life (in yrs) Salvage Value
Plant and Machinery 5 0%
Furniture and fixture 8 0%
Office equipments 5 0%
Vehicles 10 0%

De- recognition
An item of property plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued used of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference b the sales p ds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the
Statement of Profit or loss

Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery and system
development, awaiting capitalization, Capital work-in-progress would be wansferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use,
i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, Capital
work-in-progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are initially recognized at cost. Subsequently intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and

accumulated impairment losses. An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.

Amortization
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be cither finite or indefinite. An intangible asset shall be regarded as having an
indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of allof the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the
asset is expected generate net cash inflow for the entity. \

¢
&\ - //"‘/‘f’fm”‘ &

10 aRiSM

B Lt LN Br s

gRBIdT Sodcdioe HUS fAfdTes | COOp 2 GOVS




qIficb Uldidest 20C0/0Ca \‘s,!é{

Amortization is recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss on straight line method (SLM) over the estimated useful life of the
intangible assets from the date that it is available for use since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at cach financial year end. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss,

Usefiul Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM is categorized as stated below:

Particulars Useful Life (in yrs)
Website 10
Software Development 10

2.16 Impairment of assets
The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each date of the financial statement, if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised under Impairment expenses in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired.

2.17 Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents have an original maturity of less than three months. These enable the company to meet its shori-term
liquidity requirements,
Cash and bank balances comprise cash in hand and balances with Banks as on reporting date.

2.18 Share Capital

Financial instruments issued by the company which evidences a residual interest in the asset of the company after deducting all the
ligbilities are classified as the equity instruments. Such equity instruments is presented as share capital in the statement of financial
position which represents the par value of equity shares issued.The company has classified financial instruments as equity when there
is no contractual obligation to transfer cash, other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instrumens.

2.19 Non- Controlling Interest (NCI)
Non-controlling interest represents the portion of net assets and results of operations of subsidiaries attributable to equity interests that
arc not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Group. NCI is presented separately in the consolidated statement of Financial statement
within equity, and separately from the parent's equity. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interest in proportion to their respective ownership interests.For the
purpose of determining the percentage of holding and calculating NCI, both the converted and pending allotment of ordinary shares
have been considered.

2.20 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the company and the revenue and
associated cost incurred or to be incurred can reliably be measured.Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Company expects 1o be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.¢. on transfer of control
of thee goods or service to the customer. Revenue from operation is net of Indirect Taxes, returns and discounts.

Income recognition for the revenue streams is as below:-

i) Revenue from sales Of Services Operations

Revenue from the sale of Services shall be recognized when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

The service has been fully provided and the Company has satisfied its performance obligations as per the contract.

> The customer has obtained control of the service and can derive economic benefits from it.
> The transaction price is reliably measurable, ensuring no significant uncertainty in determining the value of the service provided.
> There is a reasonable expectation of collectability, considering the customer’s ability and intent to make payment

The company has not commenced the operation by the end of fiscal year and hence the revenue from operation has not been recorded
in the books.

ii) Other Income
> Other Incomes have been recognized on accrual basis in the financial statement.
> Interest income is recognized on the time proportion basis using the effective interest rate.

2.21 Foreign Currency Transactions

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to Nepalese Rupees using the
spot foreign exchange rate ruling at that date and all differences arising on non-trading activities are taken to ‘Other Operating
Income’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortized
cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the rates of exchange prcvni].ing al the end of the reporting period.

A Qv’r" \

C@VQ“% |

WIDioes

CGOP 2 GOVS | gRTdT $6acdioe hUs [e1foies




aIffes gfdfdger 20To/0TAa \‘,%{6)

2

2.23

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are transiated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items in foreign currency measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates
al the date when the fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement or reporting of monetary items at rates different from those which were
initially recorded are dealt with in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, foreign currency diff arising on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognized in other comprehensive income

The company does not have any foreign currency denominated assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Employee Benefits
i) Short term-Employment Benefits:

The cost of all short-term employee benefits (that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months afier the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service) are recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.
The accruals for employee entitlements to benefits such as salaries, bonuses and annual leave represents the amount which the
Company has present obligation to pay as a result of the employee's services and obligation can be measured reliably.

ii) Post- Employment Benefits

A defined contribution plan is a post employment plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amount. The Company has no schemes of retirement benefits for staffs in the
form provident fund (defined contribution plan) as per the requirement of the Labour Act, 2074.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The company's net obligaton in
respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have been eamed in the
current and prior periods, discount that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit-
obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. The company has no schemes of
retirement benefits for staffs in the form of defined benefit plan,

Income Tax

As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income Taxes) tax expense is the aggregate amount included in determination of profit
or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation. Income Tax expense is recognized in the of Profit or Loss,
except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in
equity or in other comprehensive income. The Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect of
the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws d or sut ively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of prior years

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts, and
it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liabillty on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. Deferred income tax is
recognized using the statement of financial position and its tax base. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their camrying amount in the
financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initlal recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and affects neith ing nor ble profits or loss at the time of the transaction.
Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that is probable that laxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. The Company has
recognized deferred tax asset/liabilities on the items through which such temporary difference has arisen.
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Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using the effective tax rate of 25% (Previous Year 25%). Deferred tax liabilities
(net of liabilities) have been recognized in respect of all tax loss and other temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assct
where the management believe it has become reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized in accordance with NFRS.

2.24 Inventories
As per NAS 2, "Inventories”, Inventories shall be carried at the lower of net realizable value or cost. Cost comprises of all costs of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the
necessary estimated expenses.

2.25 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.
Financial asset is any asset that is:
a) Cash
b) An equity instrument of another entity;
c) A contractual right:
i) To receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
ii) To exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favorable to the entity;
or

d) A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:

i) a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a variable number of the entity's own equity instruments; or

ii) a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the entity’s own equity instruments.

The company's principal financial assets comprises of assets held at fair value, trade and other receivables as well as advances.
A financial liability is any liability that is:

a) Contractual obligation:

(i) To deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

(ii) To exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the
entity; or

b) & contract that will or may be setiled in the entity's own equity instruments and is:

i) a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of the entity's own equity instruments; or

ii) a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the entity's own equity instruments.

While the company's financial liabilities consist of long-term borrowings, short term borrowings and trade payables.

Recognition and measurement

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities initially at its fair value plus in the case of Financial Assets and
financial liabilities not "at Fair value through Profit or Loss", transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial assets and financial liabilities. The transaction costs of FinancialAssets carried "at Fair Value through Profit or Loss" are
expensed in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets

i) Fi inl Assets ed at amortized cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These instruments are recognized at amortized cost using
effective interest rate. This classification includes trade receivables, advances and deposit. These instruments are mostly non-interest
bearing and where interest component is present the implicit interest rate appmximntes effective interest rate. Therefore, it is assumed
that the carrying amount represents the amortized cost of the assets.
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ii) Financial Assets at fair value through other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI):

A financial asset is measured at Fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial
assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of other comprehensive income. This classification includes
equity securities held to maturity.

iii) Financial Assets at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is measured at FVTPL. These financial assets are measured at
fair value and changes are taken to state loss. This classification includes quoted or unquoted equity securities held for trading.

Compound Financial Instrument :

The Company has issued convertible, cumulative preference shares with a term of 16 years and a fixed annual dividend. In accordance
with NAS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation, the instrument is classified as a compound financial instrument comprising a
liability component—representing the present value of cumulative dividend obligations, calculated using a direct discount rate of 14%
(Borrowing rate of Unsecured loan) —and an equity component for the residual value. The liability component is presented under
“Accrued Preference Dividends” and the equity component is not subsequently remeasured. The finance cost accrued on the liability
portion is recognized as finance cost under non-operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss

Investment (Available for Sale):

The investments made by the company have been classified as available for sale and are recognized at cost in accordance with
applicable accounting standards. The company intends to hold these investments for an indefinite period, and they are not held for
trading purposes. These investments are subject to periodic review by management to assess their continued value and relevance to
the company's strategic and financial objectives,

Subsequent Measurement of financial liabilities:

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profits or loss are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the
liabilities are derecognized, and through amortization process.

All financial liabilities held by the company are classified as financial liabilities held at amortized cost using effective interest rate,
Financial liabilities held by the company are both interest bearing and non-interest bearing.

The non-interest-bearing instruments'carrying value represents the amortized cost. For interest bearing financial liabilities which
comprises of the bank loans, interest charged by the bank approximates effective interest rate and the rate is considered for calculation
of amortized cost of liability and the finance cost. The effect of initial charges and its impact on effective interest rate is considered
not material and the carrying value is considered to approximate the amortized cost.

De-recognition:

The Company De-recognizes financial assets when the right to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or when it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If substantially all the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor
transferred and the Company has retained control, the assets continue to be recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement. Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any objective indication that an asset or a group of financial assets may
have been impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
occurring after the initialrecognition of the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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The Company considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:

i) Whether the party is in default of pay h

ii) When a counterparty files for bankruptcy, and this would avoid or delay discharge of its obligation.

iii) Where the Company initiates legal of r y in respect of a credit obligatiop rif the counterpart.

iv) Where the Company consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished financial obligation, demonstrated by a
material forgiveness of debt or postp of scheduled pay

v) Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows of a group of
financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with specific individual financial assets

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

The company offsets the financial assets and liabilities, and p the net t in the St of Financial Position when and
only when, it has a legal right to set off the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle
the liability simultaneously.

.26 Investment:

The Company has made strategic investments in its subsidiaries with the objective of long-term business integration and control,
These investments are carried at cost in the standalone fi 1al in dance with NAS 27 — Separate Financial
Statements . As on July 15, 2024, the total investment in equity shares of subsidiary Biz Bazar Limited amounted to NPR 10,200,000

During the year, the Holding Company has advanced NPR 108,791,341 to subsidiaries ds proposed equity subscription.
Although shares have not been allotted as of the bal sheet date, the Holding Company has obtained control over the investee
hrough } rights. Accordingly, the subsidiary is consolidated from the date control is established, and the advance is
reclassified as investment in the consolidated financials and has been considered to calculate the holding portion in the subsidiary.

2.27 Financing and Borrowing Cost:

As per NAS 23, "Borrowing Cost", Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of an asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the
Company incurs in ion with the borrowing of funds.

228 Provisions, Contingent assets and Contingent Liabilities
As per NAS 37" Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets", Provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. An
entity recognizes provision when three basic criterias as listed below are met;
i) there is a present obligation as a result of past events,
ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying the future economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
iii) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation
that arises from the past events but is not recognised.

1 A

in fi e e

Contingent liabilities are not gnised but di
Contingent assets is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existance will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of ane or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the fi ial statements.

Company does not have any contingent liability for the reporting period.

2.29 Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
armngement conveys a right to use the asset.
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The lease rentals under such ag; nt are recognized in the st of
profit or loss as per the terms of the lease.

The Company recognizes rental exp from operating lease on a straight-line basis over the term of operating lease, Where the
rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for lessors expected inflationary cost
increases, such increases are recognized in the year in which such benefits accrue.
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As per NFRS 16, "Leases”, at the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate,

However on our assumption of lease for to either short-term leases or leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the lessee
shall recognise the lease payments associated with those leases as an expense on cither a straight-line basis over the lease term or
another systematic basis. The lessee shall apply another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the
lessee’s benefit.

The Company has elected not to recognize ROU Assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value assets and short term leases for
which the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial recognition. Since the amount of lease rentals is of low value, NFRS
16 has not been applied and lease rentals has been recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss considering the lease as operating lease.

2.30 Related Party Disclosures
A) Relationships
A party is related to an entity ift
(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:
(i)  controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the entity (this includes parents, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries);
(ii)  has an interest in the entity that gives it significant
(i) has joint control over the entity;

(b) the party is an associate (An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership, over which the
investor has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.) of the entity,

B) Directors
Key Management Personnel and their immediate family members are also considered to be related parties for disclosure purpose as
per NAS-24 “Related Party Disclosures”.
As per Nepal Accounting Standard (NAS 24) “Related Party Disclosures”, Key Management Personnel are those having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity directly or indirectly. The Company considers the
members of its Board , Chief Executive Officer and all managerial level executives as Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the

company.
Following is the list of the directors and Vice-President bearing office at the July 15, 2024:

1) Ram Chandra Sharma Chairman

2) Mahesh Kumar Sigdel Director

3) Dr. Nanda Shrestha Director

4) Deepak Gautam Director

5) Sailesh Acharya Director

6) Radha Koirala Dhakal Director
Details of transactions with related parties is listed below: For FY 2080-81

Name Nature of Transaction Amount (NRs.)

Bandipur Cable Car & Tourism Limited Investment 101,226,400
Bandipur Cable Car & Tourism Limited Payable 2,385,787
Biz Bazar Limited Advance for Investmemt 108,791,341
Biz Bazar Limited Investment 10,200,000
Siddha Gufa Ropeway PwvtLid Payable 3,000,000
Budhimaa Chhimkeswori Darshan Pvt. Ltd Advance for Investment 3,400,000
As per NAS 24." Related Party Disclosure", control is defined as the power to govern the fi ial and operating policies of an entity
s0 as to obtain benefits from its activities. Control generally exists when an investor holds more than 50% of the voting power of an
investee, unless it can be clearly demonstrated otherwise, .

2
[

TOURISM
N VESTIENT FUND LTD.

- Sl SR $ooNedioe hUs fifoics | CGOP 2 GOVS




aIffeb Ufidgar 20T0o/0Tq \‘%{6)

231 Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic eamings per sharc are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharcholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all potentially dilutive securities.

Standalone
Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080

Net profit/ (loss) after tax as per statement of
(a) profit and loss attributable to equity 533,265 29,597,558

shareholders

Net Profit (loss) attributable to equity
®) sharcholders adjusted for income dilution Lo HaTN

Weighted average number of equity shares for
(c) Basic EPS 890,000 890,000

Weighted average number of equity shares for
(d) Diluted EPS 2,027,000 1,653,000
() Basic carnings per share (in Rs.) 0.60 33.26
(f) Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) 1.32 18.70
(g) Face value per equity share 100 100

2.32 Cash Flow Statement
The Company has reported its cash flow statement applying the "Indirect Method" in accordance with NAS 07 -"Statement of Cash
Flows".
‘Cash and Cash Equivalents’, as referred to in the statement of cash flows are the same as presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of financial position. ‘Cash Flows' are inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents.

The Statement of cash flows reports cash flows during the period classified by operating, investing and financing activities as defined

hereunder:
; s g are the principal revenue gencrating activities of the reporting entity and other
Y Dporing Aesivition; activities that are not classified as investing or financing activities.
b) Investing Activities: are the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other long term investments,
¢) Financing Activities: are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed

equity and borrowed capital of the company.

2.32 CSR Reserve
Section 54 of Industrial Enterprises Act, 2076 provides the statutory requirement to set aside at least one percent of its annual profit in
each fiscal year for the purpose of performing the corporate social responsibility.
The company has not created any CSR Reserve since it is yet to have operational income.

233 Comparative Information

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the company and are consistent with those used in the previous year. Arca
in which accounting policies are changed , treatment of same has been given in the financial statement. Previous years figure have
been regrouped and/or rearranged whereever necessary to facilitate comparision.
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited

Pokhiara - 08, Newroad

Schedules forming an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statement as on 31st Ashadh , 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Investment Note -5
Investment (Non Current) Note-5. 1
Consolidated Standalone
—_— ——
i ibutiary As at As at Asat As at As at As at
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079
Investment in other company’s share 115,033,898 79,897,202 803,839 111,426,400 67,700,000 10,200,000
[ in§ dary Market - - - - - -
Total 115,033,898 79,897,202 803,839 111,426,400 67,700,000 10,200,000
Investment (Current) Note-5.2
c 1.4, 1 Y Il_t —
Pirtinlirs As at As at As at As at Asat Asat
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079
Held to Maturity - - - -
Total - - - - - -
Advance for Investment Note-5.3
Consolidated Standalone
- ===
Particulars As at As at As at As at As al As at
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079
In in other company's share 6,881,002 44,387,318 806,682 112,191,341 143,865,321 46,395,355
Held to Maturity - - - - - -
Total 6,881,002 44,387,318 506,682 112,191,341 143,865,321 46,395 355
Cash and Cash Equivalent Note -6
Consolidated Standalone
S ——— e =
Particulars As at As at As at As at Asat As at
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079
Cash in Hand (as certified by management) - 33,174 34,769 - 33,174 33,174
Wallets 98,504 123,565 85,782 - - .
Balance with Banks 5,949,152 21,836,471 7,138,324 5,516,725 21,144,870 4,802,395
Total 6,047,657 21,993,210 7,258,875 5,516,725 21,178,044 4,835,569
Note -6.1
Bank Balances Consolldaied Standalone
==L’ B
Particulars As at As at As at Asat As at As at
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079
Kumari Bank Limited 3,760,040 3,760,040 910,200 3,760,040 3,760,040 910.200
Nabil Bank Limited 41,671 82,521 . - - -
NMB Bank Limited 306,511 292,718 418,535 - = %
Nepal SBI Bank Limited 1,840,931 17,701,193 5.809,589 1,756,685 17,384,830 3,892,195
Total 5,949,152 21,836,471 7,138,324 5,516,725 21,144,870 4,802,395
Trade Receivables Note - 7
C lid St&r dal
P As al As at As at As at As at As at
Ashadh 31, 2081 Asbadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079
Short Term Investment 30,870,811 89,078,968 131,527 461 30,870,811 B9,078,968 131,527 461
Account Receivable 21,325,866 21,155,385 22,513,454 - - -
Total 52,196,677 110,234,353 154,040,915 30,870,811 §9,078.968 131,527,461
Other Financial Asset Note - §
Consolidated Standalone
Particulars As at As at As at As at Asat Asat
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079
Land Sales Receivable 58,000,000 59,100,000 - 58,000,000 59,100,000 -
S ity Dep: — Bank G 432,000 42,000 132,000 - - -
Employee Advance 72,103 200,508 33,200 - -
Less:Provision for Doubtful debis = - = = = -
Total 58,504,103 59,342,508 165,200 v 58,000,000 59,100,000 -
_"———’-:—"dﬁ’l \ =
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited
Pokhara - 08, Newroad

Schodules forming an itegral part of the Consolidated Financial Statemcnt a5 on 315t Ashadh , 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Share Capital Note- 10
Equity Share Capital Nate - 10.1
Consolidated iud.ﬂom
Particulars Asat Asat Asat As at Asat Asat
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 31, 2081 Ashudh 31 Shrawan 01,
Authorized Capital
(10,000,000 shares of Rs. 100 cach) 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Lssued Capital
(10,000,000 shares of Rs. 100 each) 1,000,000,000 550,000,000 550,000,000 10040, 000, 000 550,000,000 550,000,000
Subscribed and Paid- Up Capital
(890,000 shares of Rs.100 each) 9,000,000 £9,000,000 £9,000,000 85,000,000 89,000,000 89,000,000
Total #9.000,000 89,000,000 £9,000,000 89, 9,000,000 49,000,000

Al the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 2080.12.03 (B.S.), the sharcholders of the Company approved the subdivision of the fice vilue of cach equity share from NPR 1,000 (One Thousand)
to NPR 100 (One Hundred). This change was made in b with the provisions of the Companies Act und following necessary i 1o the M dum of Association (MOA) and
Articles of Association (ADA),

Consolidated Standulone
n) Reconciliation of the number of Shares As at 15th July 2024 As at 15th July 2024
Equity Shares No of Shares  Amouni(in kakhs) No of Shares Amountin lukhs)
Halance at the begimnimg of the year 890,000 9,000,000 890,000 £9,000,000
Addition duting the year £ : - s
Balance as at the end of the year H90,000 B9,000,000 R90,000 #9,000,000

quuiiy.‘ﬂwwm:mmnyimmchau[qnﬂymhuignpnrvlh:orm.ll)ﬂwmmmhﬂukdﬁim&rummwmmﬂmdmmbylhmm
umbjm|umwmﬂﬂfﬂusmwmtmgcwﬂmimuupiincaenfivau—imdividmd.mmemofhﬁuh:hmﬂymm:mtmmdwﬂtmmmﬂ
the company after the distribution of the p inl amounts, in proportion 1o their ing.

b) Right , Pref and R hed to Shares

The Company has issued ive prefi shares with a fixed snnual dividend of 6.25%, redeemable or ble afier 16 years from the date of issue, These preference shareholders
dnmlmﬂ\mr@mm“wwmmiwmnmhtm;whi:h{spn)mbltnd\vmdofle'_\ﬂr.Iﬁﬂmmunflhuﬂarhn.lhthzmhrﬁynmoquhyw%hrmmup
0 their capital imd Lo driaa iy iuy

Preference Share Note- 11
Consolidated Sanndabvne
Particulars Aswt Asat As ut As ut Asal Asal
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawsn 01, 2079 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashudh 31, 2080 Shruwan 01, 2079
6.25% Cumulative Ci ible Preft Share 99,727,219 66,923,367 2,368,193 99,727,219 66,923,367 2,368,193
Totul 99,727,219 66,923,367 1,368,193 99,727,219 66, 7 193
Retained Earnings Note -12
Petnined carnings is the amount of net profit left over for the business after it has paid out dividends to its sharchol Retained carnings ts maintained by company to zthen » company's Gnancial
position. Detail of such retained carnings and reserve has been tabulated below:
Consolidated Standulone
e I
Particol As at Asat As ut Asat As at Asat
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 Ashindh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079
Opening balance 4,275,125 (2,663,472) (§76,565) 35,239,268 641,710 2,675,253
Prior Period Adjustment - - 663,251 - - 170,022
Net profit afler tux during the year (16,347,177) 6,938,597 (2,450,158) 533,265 29,597,558 2,696,435
Dividend paid during the year (22,250,000) 3 - (22.250,000) - -
Total (4322,052)_ 4275125 663477 13,522,533 35299368 5641710
Non Current Liabilities Note- 13
Consolidated Standalone
Purticalass Asat As at Asut As at As at As at
Ashudh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 Ashadh 31, 208 31, 2080 Shrawan 01 9
Unsecured Lonn 18,350,000 30,600,000 36,400,000 18,350,000 30,600,000 36,400,000
Hire Purchase Loan 5,812,860 6,501,743 7471958 ok - ~
Acerued Preference Dividend 17,485,851 10,742,318 378,261 17,485,851 10,742,318 378,261
Total 41,648,711 47,854,061 9 35,535,851 41,342318 36,778,261

s>

o
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited
Pokhara - 08, Newroad
Schedules forming an integral pant of the C lidated Financial St a5 on 3161 Ashadh , 2081 (15th July, 2024)
Short Term Borrowing Noie - 14
Consolidated Stundalone
Particiiers Asat Asat Asat Asat As at As ut
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 _Shrawun 01, 2079
HP Loan (Current Portion) 705,246 960,215 658,549 - - -
Total 705,246 960,215 658549 - - -
Trade Payables Note - 15
Consolidated Standalone
Bacisalins Asat Asat As at Asat As at As at
Ashadh 31, 2081 _Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079
Creditors for Goods & Services 4,564,087 1,482 576 409,402 146,463 141,447 1,514
Total 4,564,087 1,482,576 409,402 146,465 141,447 1514 |
Other Linbilities Note - 16
Cnu_u;md Stundalone
Particulars As at As al Asal Asmt Asat Asat
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079
Debenture Interest Payable - - 157,440 - - 157,440
Security Deposit 2,821,004 8,056,004 7,915,000 - -
Audit Fee Payable 564,888 269,000 191 875 417,138 195,125 128,225
CIT Payable 325,000 145,000 118,280 - -
Staff Bonus Payable - 4,728 960 401,063 - 4,728,960 401,063
Salury and Wages Payubles 630,656 1,093,243 2,738,840 - 232,927 .
PF Payable T09,096 358,262 1,124,997
Rent Payable 38,700 - 162,500 38,700 - -
Miscellk Payabic 10,557,595 5,826,480 3,020,117 10,557,595 3,826,480 3,020,117
Total 15,646,940 20,476,970 15,830,112 11,013,434 10,983,492 3,706,846
Other Current Linbilities Note- 17
Consolidated Standalone
Particulars As ut As at As at As at As at A at
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Shrawan 01, 2079 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashudh 31, 2080 Shruwan 01, 2079
Statutory Dues [E VAT, Excise , Income Tax Payable 12,165,571 14,649,467 3,368,195 11,318,586 13,961,148 2,224,201
Other Payable 93,861,024 132,159,888 108,846,453 87517460 129,692,712 107,898,592
Total 106,026,596 146,809,354 112,214,648 98,836,046 143,653,860 110,122,793
; \
A N {
o .
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited

Pokhara - 08, Newroad
Schedules forming an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statement

for the year ended 31st Ashadh, 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Revenue From Operation Note- 18
Consolidated Standalone
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Finance Income 9,956,079 9,356,537 9,956,079 9,356,537
Service Income 4,390,714 19,311,680 - -
Sale of Goods 9,709,461 689,030 - -
Total 24,056,254 29,357,247 9,956,079 9,356,537
Cost of Sales Note- 19
Consolidated Standalone
P —— Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Opening Stock - - - -
Add: Purchase 10,549,155 733,989 - -
Add: Direct Expenses 544,324 1,717,563 - -
Less: Closing Inventories (1,550,492) - - -
Interest Expenses 2,704,558 4,380,070 2,704,558 4,380,070
Bank Charges 23,999 37,095 793 2,435
Total 12,271,545 6,868,717 2,705,351 4,382,505
Other Income Note - 20
Consolidated Standalone
Pasicaliss Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Gain on Sale of Asset 14915 123,051,657 - 122,928,351
Interest Income - 28,337 - -
Miscellaneous Income 21,526 238,337 5.000 144,390
Total 36,441 123,318,330 5,000 123,072,740
Employee Benefit Expenses Note - 21
Consolidated Standalone
aviiag Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Salary Expenses 5,194,687 25,584,534 590210 9,760,767
Staff Incentive - 65,000 - -
Leave Encashment 113,920 457,335 - -
Allowance Expenses 50,003 128,000 50,003 128,000
Staff Welfare Expenses - 358,034 - 358.034
Total 5,358,610 26,592,904 640,213 10,246,801
" b BN 1~ )
®
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Tourism Investment Fund Limited

Pokhara - 08, Newroad

Schedules forming an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statement
for the year ended 31st Ashadh, 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Administrative Expenditure Note - 22
Consolidated Standalone
Pastbiiiings Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Tea and Tiffin Expenses 1,179,093 1,097,848 53,550 1,097,848
Marketing Expenses 2,421,477 9,058,178 - -
Staff Welfare & Refreshment 50,796 - - -
Consultancy Fee 72,889 250,210 72,889 250,210
Travelling and Accommodation 358,577 634,205 249,882 593,241
Audit Fee 300,000 272,750 225,000 197,750
Meeting & Seminar Expenses 17,511 285,003 - -
House Rent Expenses 1,598,555 6,098,883 864,555 4,543,984
Miscellaneous Expenses 920 2812474 B 2,673,323
Insurance Premium 326,431 452,407 - .
Office Expenses 1,070,780 4,418,022 367,324 2,351,594
Printing and Stationary 189,751 772,221 145,578 300,565
Repair and Maintenance 315,702 406,686 . =
Security Expenses 624,000 583,551
Communication Expenses 470,755 1,312,289 - 266,587
Fuel Expenses 929,670 1,644,720 59,000 70,200
Recruitment Expenses - 229,300 - -
Water and Electricity 557,309 730,323 - 584,259
Registration and Renewal 442,791 786,845 285451 481,370
Canteen Expenses - 1,738,607 - 1,738,607
Advertisement Expenses 22,600 - 22,600 B
Total 10,949,605 33,584,524 2,345,829 15,149,539
Selling & Distribution Expenses Note - 23
Consolidated Standalone
ottt Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Selling & Distribution Expenses - 55,317,758 - 55,317,758
Total - 55,317,758 - 55,317,758
Non-Operating Expenses Note - 24
Consolidated Standalone
e — Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080 Ashadh 31, 2081 Ashadh 31, 2080
Finance Cost 2,973,846 2,447,296 2,147,385 1,319,232
Total 2,973,846 2,447,296 2,147,385 1,319,232
\.c-ﬂ\ Cro
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES Note - 25
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets comprise trade and other
receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arrive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below.

25.1 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market prices comprise four types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, commodity price risk and other price risk, such as
equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and deposits.
a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
markel interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
bank overdraft and short term deposits.
The Company manages its interest rate risk by negotiating with highly reputed commercial banks.
b) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different currency from the Company’s functional
currency).
The Company manages its foreign currency risk by not holding the payables in foreign currencies for longer duration. Also, to the
extent doable, the Company hedges its foreign exchange exposures by executing forward contracts to minimize risk caused by
foreign exchange fluctuations. There are no open forward contracts as at Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024).

25.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions.

25.3 Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds on a regular basis through cash forecasts.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts
and bank loans. Access to sources of funding is sufficient. "
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26.1 First time adoption of NFRS Note - 26
The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per NFRS as of Shrawan 1, 2078 (the transition date) by recognising
all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by NFRS, not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not
permitted by NFRS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to NFRS as required under NFRS, and applying NFRS in
measurement of recognised assets and liabilities. However, this principle is subject to the certain exception and certain
optional exemptions availed by the Company as detailed below.

i) Recognition of Property, Plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company has elected to measure its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their actual historical purchase
cost from their respective dates of acquisition, instead of continuing with the carrying values under previous GAAP.
Accordingly, the original purchase prices less Depreciation have been used as the deemed cost for these assets at the
transition date in accordance with the exemptions permitted under NFRS | — First-time Adoption of NFRS.

26.2 Reconciliation between previous GAAP and NFRS
The following reconciliations provide the effect of transaction to NFRS from previous GAAP in accordance with NFRS 1.

a) Retained Earnings as at 01-04-2079

Particular Amount
Retained Earnings under previous GAAP on 01-04-2079 5,371,688
Adjustments: -
Change in accounting policy: -
Depreciation 235,992
Assets written off -
Finance Cost (46,453)
Deferred tax adjustment (net) 80,483
Retained Earning under NFRS at 01-04-2079 5,641,710
b) Net Profit for the year ended 31-03-2080
Particulars For FY 2079-80
Profit/(loss) after tax under previous GAAP 30,783,461
Adjustments: -
Impact of Depreciation (40,801)
Finance Cost (1,319,232)
Impact of Gratuity expense -
Impact of Deferred Tax 174,130
Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) as per NFRS at 31-03-2080 29,597,558

¢) There are no material adjustments to the statements of cash flows as rep{‘)rted under previous GAAP.
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